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Mr. Lo Yuk Sui, aged 65; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer — Chairman and Managing Director since 1989 when

the Company was established in Bermuda as the holding company of the Group. Mr. Lo has been the Managing Director

and the Chairman of the predecessor listed company of the Group since 1984 and 1987 respectively. Mr. Lo was

designated as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in 2007. He is also the chairman and chief executive officer of

Century City International Holdings Limited (“CCIHL”) and Paliburg Holdings Limited (“PHL”), of which the Company is

the listed associate, and the non-executive chairman of Regal Portfolio Management Limited (”RPML”), the manager of

Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (the listed associate of the Company). Mr. Lo is a qualified architect. In his capacity as

the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lo oversees the overall policy and decision making of the Group. Mr. Lo is the father of

Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To and Miss Lo Po Man.

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP, aged 64; Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director — Invited to the Board as

Non-Executive Director and elected Vice Chairman in 2004. Dr. Choi holds a master degree in business administration

from the Newport University in the United States of America and a bachelor degree in business administration from the

Sussex College of Technology in the United Kingdom. He also holds a Ph. D in Business Management from Harbin

Institute of Technology, the People’s Republic of China. Dr. Choi is the chairman of Early Light International (Holdings)

Ltd. and has extensive business interests in the manufacturing industry and the property sector. He is the Honorary

President of the Toys Manufacturer’s Association of Hong Kong, Honorary President of the Hong Kong Young

Industrialists Council and the Council Member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a Member of National

Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Choi is also the vice chairman and non-

executive director of Town Health International Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”).

Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu, aged 51; Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer — Appointed to the Board in 2002

and designated as the Chief Operating Officer in 2007. Ms. Yeung joined the Group in 1987. Having obtained her hotel

management university degree in U.S.A., Ms. Yeung has acquired extensive hotel management experience in U.S.A.,

Mainland China as well as in Hong Kong — in both multi-unit corporate and single-unit hotel management levels. As the

Chief Operating Officer in charge of the hotel operation and management functions of the Group, Ms. Yeung is

responsible for overseeing the hotel business operations of the Group. On top of her hotel management responsibilities,

Ms. Yeung is also in charge of the human resources management of the Century City Group.

Mr. Donald Fan Tung, aged 53; Executive Director — Appointed to the Board in 2002. Mr. Fan is a qualified architect.

He has been with the Group since 1987 and is primarily in charge of the property investment and development businesses

and the hotel project works of the Group. Mr. Fan is also an executive director of CCIHL, an executive director and the

chief operating officer of PHL and a non-executive director of RPML. Mr. Fan is involved in the property development,

architectural design and project management functions as well as overseeing the building construction business of the

Paliburg Group.
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Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen, aged 55; Independent Non-Executive Director — Invited to the Board as Independent Non-

Executive Director in 2004. Ms. Kan is a shareholder and the managing director of Asia Investment Management Limited

providing corporate advisory and investment management services and Asia Investment Research Limited involving in

research work in Hong Kong and China based companies. She is a licensed person under the Securities and Futures

Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “SFO”) to carry out certain regulated activities. She has over 20 years of experience in

corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity and debt markets. She formerly held various senior positions

in international and local banks and financial institutions. Ms. Kan is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered

Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the CPA Australia and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Kan is an independent

non-executive director of China Energine International (Holdings) Limited, Shougang Concord International Enterprises

Company Limited, Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Limited, G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited, Shimao

Property Holdings Limited and Sunway International Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To, aged 36; Executive Director — Appointed to the Board in 1999. He is also an executive director

of CCIHL and PHL and a non-executive director of RPML. Mr. Jimmy Lo graduated from Cornell University, New York,

U.S.A. with a degree in architecture. Apart from his involvement with the design of the Group’s property and hotel

projects, he undertakes responsibilities in the business development function of the Century City Group. He is the son of

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui and the brother of Miss Lo Po Man.

Miss Lo Po Man, aged 30; Executive Director — Appointed to the Board in 2004. Miss Lo graduated from Duke

University, North Carolina, U.S.A. with a bachelor degree in psychology. She is also an executive director of CCIHL and

PHL. Miss Lo joined the Group in 2000 and has been involved in the marketing and sales functions of the Group. Miss Lo

is an executive director of the estate agency business of the Group and has undertaken an active role in directing the

marketing campaign of the Group’s luxury residential development, Regalia Bay in Stanley, Hong Kong. She also

undertakes responsibilities in the business development function of the Group. Miss Lo is the daughter of Mr. Lo Yuk Sui

and the sister of Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To.

Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai, aged 55; Executive Director  — Joined the Group in 1985 and appointed to the Board in

1998. Mr. Ng is a Chartered Secretary and is in charge of the corporate finance, company secretarial and administrative

functions of the Century City Group. He is also an executive director and the chief operating officer of CCIHL, an

executive director of PHL and a non-executive director of Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, a company listed

on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng Siu Chan, aged 79; Independent Non-Executive Director — Invited to the Board as Independent Non-Executive

Director in 2005. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-executive director of CCIHL and PHL. He is a non-executive director

of Transport International Holdings Limited, which is publicly listed in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

Mr. Allen Wan Tze Wai, aged 51; Executive Director — Appointed to the Board in March 2010. Mr. Wan has been with

the Century City Group for over 20 years and is the Group Financial Controller of the Century City Group. Mr. Wan holds

a bachelor degree in commerce from the University of New South Wales in Australia. He is a member of Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Wan has about 28 years of experience in finance and

accounting field.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 55; Independent Non-Executive Director — Invited to the Board as Independent Non-

Executive Director in 2004. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of CCIHL and PHL. He holds a

master’s degree in business administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia and

an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered Institute of

Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a responsible officer for asset management, advising on securities and

advising on corporate finance for Sinox Fund Management Limited under the SFO. Mr. Wong was an executive director,

the deputy general manager, group financial controller and company secretary of Guangzhou Investment Company

Limited (now known as “Yuexiu Property Company Limited”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten

years. He is also an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of Asia Orient Holdings

Limited, Asia Standard International Group Limited, China Nickel Resources Holdings Company Limited, China Ting Group

Holdings Limited, First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (Provisional Liquidators Appointed), FU JI Food and Catering

Services Holdings Limited (Provisional Liquidators Appointed), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited, Ngai Lik Industrial

Holdings Limited, PacMOS Technologies Holdings Limited and TPV Technology Limited, all of which companies are listed

on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in finance, accounting and management.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group achieved a consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$431.1 million, as compared to the consolidated loss of HK$808.8 million recorded in 2008. The profit attained for the
year under review is mainly attributable to the fair value gains on the financial assets and investment properties held by
the Group and the contribution from its listed associate, Regal Real Estate Investment Trust.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK6.8 cents (2008 – HK5.0 cents) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31st December, 2009, absorbing an amount of approximately HK$68.7 million (2008 –
HK$50.5 million), payable to holders of ordinary shares on the Register of Ordinary Shareholders on 9th June, 2010.

Together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2008 – HK3.0 cents, as adjusted for the 10-into-1 share consolidation
implemented in October 2008) per ordinary share paid in October 2009, total dividends per ordinary share for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 will amount to HK8.8 cents (2008 – HK8.0 cents, as adjusted).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

REGAL REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

The Group presently holds approximately 74.2% of the issued units of Regal REIT, which owns the five Regal Hotels as
well as a 75% majority interest in Regal iClub Building in Hong Kong. As explained previously, in conforming to the
prescribed accounting standards, the interests of the Group held in Regal REIT, representing one of the most significant
investments held by the Group, were only stated in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 at a value of HK$140.0 million, which was by far below its underlying value. Accordingly, for the
purpose of reference, supplementary information on the net assets of the Group, compiled on an adjusted basis to reflect
more fairly the underlying net assets attributable to the interests held by the Group in Regal REIT, is provided in the
section below headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, Regal REIT attained a consolidated profit before distributions to unitholders of
HK$626.8 million, as compared to a consolidated net loss of HK$2,150.2 million before distributions to unitholders
recorded in 2008. Total distributable income for 2009 amounted to approximately HK$558.2 million, as compared to
HK$501.9 million in 2008. Total contribution from Regal REIT attributable to the Group, inclusive of the excess over the
cost of acquisition by the Group of additional interests in Regal REIT, amounted to HK$468.9 million for the year under
review.

Regal Portfolio Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, is acting as the REIT Manager of Regal
REIT. For the management services provided, the REIT Manager received fees in an aggregate amount of HK$70.8 million
from Regal REIT for the year 2009, a majority part of which is settled by the issue of Regal REIT units.

HOTELS

2009 was on the whole a challenging year for hotel operators in Hong Kong. In the first half of the year, the travel
market was adversely affected by the aftermath of the financial tsunami and the H1N1 swine flu pandemic. As the
worldwide economies began to stabilise in the second half, hotel businesses in Hong Kong gradually improved. Total
visitor arrivals to Hong Kong in 2009 were maintained at about the same level as that of 2008 and recorded a total count
of approximately 29.6 million. Travelers from major overseas markets generally declined, particularly those from the
Americas, Europe, Japan and South Korea. However, visitors from Mainland China continued to increase, rising to
account for slightly over 60% of the total arrivals in 2009 and provided key supporting demand for the local hotel sector.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)

Based on the information published by Tourism Research of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the average hotel room
occupancy rate for all hotels in different categories in Hong Kong for the year 2009 was 78%, dropped from 85% in the
previous year, with average achieved hotel room rate having also declined by 16.3%, primarily due to the reduced travelers
from major overseas markets. The performance of the five Regal Hotels in Hong Kong in 2009 was likewise affected by the
market downturn, with the average occupancy rate and the average achieved room rate having decreased by approximately
9.1% and 16.1%, respectively, as compared with 2008, which was generally in line with the overall market. Consequently,
the results of the Group’s hotel operation business for the year under review have been adversely impacted.

Alongside the hotel operation business, important focus has also been placed on the development of the hotel
management network under the “Regal” brand, particularly in Mainland China. The Regal Jinfeng Hotel, located in
Jinqiao Export Processing Zone in Pudong, was opened in October 2009 and is the third managed hotel property in
Shanghai. In January 2010, the Group landed in Chengdu, Sichuan with the soft opening of the Regal Master Hotel, a
350-room luxurious international five-star hotel located in a prime commercial district in Chengdu city and managed by
the Group. Another managed hotel expected to come on stream is the Regal Kangbo Hotel, a 215-room five-star hotel
project under development in Dezhou, Shandong, scheduled to be opened in the third quarter this year. Recently, the
Group has also entered into a memorandum of understanding to manage a block of service apartments under
development in Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone, Pudong, Shanghai, planned to be opened by the end of 2010 under a new
Regal brand, the “Regal Residence”.

Locally, the Group is providing management services to the 50-room Regal iClub Hotel in Wanchai, which is 75% owned
by Regal REIT and 25% owned by Paliburg Holdings Limited. Business at this new hotel since it commenced operation in
late December 2009 has been encouraging. In the meantime, the Group is also actively working on extending its
management services to hotel properties and projects overseas.

PROPERTIES

The Group sold in 2009 a total of 9 houses in Regalia Bay, Stanley for an aggregate sale consideration of HK$754 million
and certain of these sale contracts are still pending completion. The Group is currently retaining over 20 houses in Regalia
Bay, some of which have been leased out for rental income. Due to the very limited supply, the price level of luxury
residential properties on Hong Kong Island is expected to remain firm and the remaining houses will only be disposed of
when the offered price is considered to be satisfactory.

The Group is steadily progressing with the composite development project in Chengdu, which is 50% owned by each of
the Group and Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited. The first stage of the project will entail the construction on
the two separate land parcels, respectively, a 300-room five-star hotel with extensive facilities and a residential
development comprising 9 tower blocks with total gross floor area of about 1.5 million square feet and providing over
1,200 apartment units. Development works for the first stage have been commenced and presale of the residential
development is expected to be launched before the end of this year. Stage two of the development project also
comprises residential development which will have total gross floor area of about 1.9 million square feet, while stage
three is planned for commercial and office accommodations with total gross floor area of about 1.5 million square feet.

On the other hand, the joint development project in the Central Business District of Beijing, which is owned through an
associate that is in turn 50% owned by each of the Group and the Paliburg group, is presently encountering some
complicated and complex issues. The Group’s management will jointly with the Paliburg group use their best endeavours
to deal with these difficult issues and to protect the interest of the Group’s associate in the development project. Further
information on this project is contained in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

OTHER INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Group participated as one of the cornerstone investors in the initial public offering of China Pacific
Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. Moreover, the Group also owns within its investment portfolio substantial interests in the
convertible bonds issued by Cosmopolitan group and, in addition, certain issued ordinary shares of Cosmopolitan. For the
year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group recorded significant fair value gains on its portfolio of financial assets,
including those attributable to the interests held in the shares and convertible bonds of the Cosmopolitan group.

OUTLOOK

With the sustained economic growth expected in China, the overall economy in Hong Kong should gradually continue to
recover. In view of China’s policies to promote Chinese citizens to travel to Hong Kong, including the relaxation of
multiple entry permits for Shenzhen residents and the Individual Visit Schemes for major Mainland cities, and, more
importantly, the staging of the World Expo in Shanghai later this year, the tourism market in Hong Kong should further
improve. Moreover, it is also expected that the increasing number of travelers from Mainland China will not only serve to
benefit the local hotel businesses with regard to occupancy level but, given their growing affluence and their willingness
to spend more on hotel accommodation, should also help to enhance the average room rate. Overall, the Group is
anticipating that the business operations at the Regal Hotels in Hong Kong in 2010 should produce more positive results
than those achieved in the year under review.

The Group is maintaining a very solid financial position and, taking into account the cash resources, is effectively free of
debt. Although the financial environment could still be volatile, general economic conditions are gradually stabilising. The
Group will make use of its financial strength to explore various investment opportunities with a view to expanding its
investment and income base.

DIRECTORS AND STAFF

I would like to take this opportunity to welcome Mr. Allen Wan, who has been working with the Group for over 20 years,
as a new member of the Board. I would also like to thank my fellow Directors as well as all the management and staff
members for their continued dedication and support over the past year.

LO YUK SUI
Chairman

Hong Kong
22nd March, 2010
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REGAL AIRPORT HOTEL
CHEK LAP KOK  HONG KONG

 Dulpex Suite

 Kiddy Wonderland Executive Conference Centre



P.11A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REGAL HONGKONG HOTEL
CAUSEWAY BAY  HONG KONG

 Presidential Suite

 Regal Ballroom  The Forum
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REGAL KOWLOON HOTEL
TSIMSHATSUI  HONG KONG

 Regal Club Room

 Regal Club Lounge Regal Court Private Room
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REGAL ORIENTAL HOTEL
KOWLOON CITY  HONG KONG

 Regal iClub Room

 Café Neo  Regal Terrace
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REGAL RIVERSIDE HOTEL
SHA TIN  HONG KONG

 OM Spa Room

 iClub Lounge OM Spa
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REGAL iCLUB HOTEL
WAN CHAI  HONG KONG

 iSuite

 iCafé  iBusiness Room
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REGAL INTERNATIONAL EAST ASIA HOTEL
SHANGHAI  MAINLAND CHINA

 Hotel Lobby

 Regal Club Room Conference Centre
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REGAL SHANGHAI EAST ASIA HOTEL
SHANGHAI  MAINLAND CHINA

 Regal Club Room

 Swimming Pool  Meeting at Moods Bar and Lounge
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REGAL JINFENG HOTEL
SHANGHAI  MAINLAND CHINA

 Hotel Lobby

 Deluxe Room Avanti Ristorante
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REGAL MASTER HOTEL
CHENGDU  MAINLAND CHINA

 Hotel Lobby

 Superior Room  Forum
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REGAL KANGBO HOTEL
DEZHOU  MAINLAND CHINA

 Hotel Lobby

 Regal Ballroom Presidential Suite
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REGALIA BAY
STANLEY  HONG KONG

 Luxurious residence in the south of Hong Kong Island
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COMPOSITE DEVELOPMENT
CHENGDU  MAINLAND CHINA

 A composite hotel / residential / commercial development
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s significant investments and principal business activities mainly comprise the hotel operation and
management businesses, the investment in Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (“Regal REIT”) (the listed assoicate of the
Company), the asset management of Regal REIT, property development and investment, including the interest in the
remaining houses in Regalia Bay in Stanley, and other investment businesses. The performance of the Group’s hotel,
property and other investment businesses as well as that of Regal REIT during the year under review, the commentary on
the local hotel industry and changes in general market conditions and the potential impact on their operating
performance and future prospects are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement.

The annual base rents payable by the Group with respect to the leasing of the five Regal Hotels in Hong Kong owned by
Regal REIT were fixed for the period up to 31st December, 2010. For the years from 2011 to 31st December, 2015, the
date when the present leases will expire, the base rents will be based on market appraisals, subject to an aggregate
minimum base rent of not less than HK$400 million per annum, to be determined annually by an independent
professional valuer to be jointly appointed by the Group and Regal REIT. The valuation process for the determination of
the market base rents for 2011 will be conducted in the second half of this year.

With respect to the joint development project in the Central Business District in Beijing and as previously reported in the
interim report for the six months ended 30th June, 2009 of the Company (the “2009 Interim Report”), the 50%–owned
associate of the Group was engaged in arbitration proceedings conducted in Beijing, involving claims against the
associate by the vendor for the rescission of the contracts entered into between the parties in 2005 for the purchase by
the associate of an additional 36% shareholding interest in the joint venture entities that, in turn, own the development
project. To the Group’s surprise, the arbitral tribunal in Beijing has issued in late February 2010 an arbitral award in
favour of the vendor. The associate presently holds an aggregate of 59% shareholding interest in the joint venture
entities, which include the 36% additional shareholding interest acquired from the vendor in 2005, the subject matter of
the arbitration proceedings. The associate has after taken legal advice lodged an application to the relevant court in
Beijing to set aside the arbitral award. The Company has in this regard published an announcement on 15th March, 2010
on possible provision on the investment in this development project. Having considered the latest circumstances and
taking into regard other litigations, claims and disputes affecting the development project, a provision of HK$240.0
million has been made by the associate in respect of its investment in the project. The loss thus attributable to the Group
has been reflected in the share of contributions from associates in the consolidated income statement for the year under
review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

CAPITAL AND FUNDING

Funding and Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with regard to its overall business operations. Cash balances are
mostly placed on bank deposits and yield enhancement products are deployed from time to time as management of the
Group considers to be appropiate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)

Cash Flow

During the year under review, there were net cash flows used in operating activities of HK$401.7 million (2008 –
HK$110.9 million). Net interest receipt for the year amounted to HK$4.5 million (2008 – HK$30.0 million).

Borrowings

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group had total cash and bank balances and deposits, net of bank loans, of HK$1,297.1
million (2008 – HK$1,200.3 million).

As at 31st December, 2009, part of the Group’s bank deposits in the amount of HK$1,000.0 million (2008 – HK$1,000.0
million) were pledged to secure a bank guarantee procured by the Group pursuant to the lease guarantees in connection
with the leasing of the hotel properties from Regal REIT, and certain of the Group’s investment properties, properties
held for sale, bank deposits and cash balances in the total amount of HK$1,055.1 million (2008 – HK$512.5 million) were
also pledged to secure other banking facilities granted to the Group. Under the lease agreements in connection with the
leasing of the hotel properties from Regal REIT, the Group has also guaranteed a total minimum variable rent payable for
the period from 30th March, 2007 to 31st December, 2010 in the amount of HK$220.0 million, of which HK$101.6
million has been paid by the Group up to 31st December, 2009.

Details of the maturity profile of the borrowings and the contingent liabilities of the Group are shown in notes 26 and
35, respectively, to the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year under review, as reported in the 2009 Interim Report, the Company repurchased a total of 3,172,000
ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate purchase price of HK$6,117,840 on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). All the 3,172,000 repurchased ordinary shares, together with 654,000 ordinary shares
repurchased in the year of 2008 but not cancelled during that year, totalling 3,826,000 repurchased ordinary shares,
were cancelled during the year. Further details of the repurchase by the Company of its ordinary shares during the year
are disclosed under the section headed “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company‘s Listed Securities” in the Report
of the Directors.

ASSET VALUE

Based on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2009, the book net asset value of the
ordinary shares of the Company was HK$4.43 per share. Such book net asset value has been significantly affected by the
elimination of the unrealised gain on the disposal of the subsidiaries owning the hotel properties to Regal REIT in 2007
against the Group’s interest held in Regal REIT as well as the sharing of the fair value loss on the hotel properties held by
Regal REIT for the year ended 31st December, 2008. The interest held by the Group in Regal REIT represented one of the
Group’s most significant investments but, as at 31st December, 2009, such interest was only stated at a value of
HK$140.0 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

In order to more fairly reflect the underlying net asset value of the Group, management of the Group considers it
appropriate to also present, for the purposes of reference and ease of comparison, supplementary information on the
Group’s net assets position, compiled on an adjusted basis to reflect the share of the underlying adjusted net assets of
Regal REIT attributable to the Group. Accordingly, on the basis that the interest of the Group held in Regal REIT were to
be stated based on the published unaudited adjusted net asset value per unit of Regal REIT of HK$2.913 as at 31st
December, 2009, calculated on the basis that the deferred tax liabilities provided by Regal REIT with regard to the
revaluation surplus of its investment properties are added back, the unaudited adjusted net asset value of the ordinary
shares of the Company would be HK$11.14 per share.

As at 31st December, 2009
HK$ per
ordinary

HK$’million   share

Book net assets after minority interests 4,475.8 4.43

Adjustment to restate the Group’s interest in
Regal REIT on the basis noted above 6,779.0

Unaudited adjusted net assets after minority interests 11,254.8 11.14

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATES

During the year under review, there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associates of the
Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed in the Chairman’s Statement, the Group has no immediate plans for material investments or
capital assets.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employs approximately 1,870 staff in Hong Kong. The Group’s management considers the overall level of
staffing employed and the remuneration cost incurred in connection with the Group’s operations to be compatible with
market norm.

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to market terms and individual merits. Salaries are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Staff benefits plans maintained
by the Group include a mandatory provident fund scheme as well as medical and life insurance.

With a view to providing long term incentives, the Company maintains a share option scheme named as “The Regal
Hotels International Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme”, under which share options have been granted to selected
eligible persons.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are hotel
operation and management, investment in Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (“Regal REIT”) (the listed associate of the
Company), asset management of Regal REIT, property development and investment, and other investments.

There have been no significant changes in these activities during the year.

The turnover and contribution to trading results by each principal activity are set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 58 to 138.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2008 – HK3.0 cents, as adjusted for the 10-into-1 share consolidation implemented
in October 2008) per ordinary share, absorbing a total amount of approximately HK$20.2 million (2008 – HK$30.8
million), was paid to holders of ordinary shares during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK6.8 cents (2008 – HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share
for the year ended 31st December, 2009, absorbing an amount of approximately HK$68.7 million (2008 – HK$50.5
million), payable to holders of ordinary shares on the Register of Ordinary Shareholders on 9th June, 2010. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The Register of Ordinary Shareholders will be closed from Friday, 4th June, 2010 to Wednesday, 9th June, 2010, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfers of ordinary shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of ordinary shares, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 3rd June, 2010. The relevant dividend warrants are expected to be despatched on or about 30th June,
2010.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are:

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP

Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu
Mr. Donald Fan Tung
Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen
Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To
Miss Lo Po Man
Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai
Mr. Ng Siu Chan
Mr. Allen Wan Tze Wai
Mr. Wong Chi Keung

During the year, there have been no changes in the Directors of the Company.

Subsequent to the year end date, on 1st March, 2010, Mr. Allen Wan Tze Wai was appointed as an Executive Director.

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company and for compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP, the Vice Chairman
and Non-Executive Director, Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen, an Independent Non-Executive Director, and Miss Lo Po Man, an
Executive Director, will retire from office by rotation at the 2010 Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 100 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Allen Wan Tze Wai, who was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company subsequent to the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 9th June,
2009, shall hold office until the 2010 Annual General Meeting.

All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2010 Annual General
Meeting. Details of these Directors, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules 13.51(2) and 13.74 of the
Listing Rules, are set out in the circular of the Company relating to, inter alia, re-election of Directors sent to shareholders
together with the 2009 Annual Report.

The Company has received from each of the three incumbent Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of these
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the Directors had any beneficial interests, whether direct or indirect, in any
significant contract to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of the reporting period or at
any time during the year.

None of the Directors had any service contract, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement whose objects are to
enable a Director of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, other than under the share option scheme of the Company named as “The Regal
Hotels International Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme” (the “Share Option Scheme”), under which options have
been granted to certain Directors.

During the year, no option was granted to any Directors under the Share Option Scheme, and none of the Directors
exercised options to subscribe for shares under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) of the Company, which (a) are as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) are as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Number of shares held
Total

(Approximate
percentage

 of the
Family/ issued shares

Name of Class of Personal Corporate Other as at 31st
Director shares held interests interests interests December, 2009)

1. The Company Mr. Lo Yuk Sui Ordinary
(i) issued 24,200 492,209,261 260,700 492,494,161

(Note a(i))

(ii) unissued 20,000,000 – – 20,000,000
(Note a(ii))

Total (i) & (ii): 512,494,161
(50.70%)

Dr. Francis Choi Ordinary 50,240,000 – – 50,240,000
Chee Ming (issued)  (4.97%)

Ms. Belinda Yeung Ordinary 3,000,000 – – 3,000,000
Bik Yiu (unissued) (Note b)  (0.30%)

Mr. Donald Fan Ordinary 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000
Tung (unissued)  (Note c)  (0.20%)

Mr. Jimmy Lo Ordinary 1,500,000 – – 1,500,000
Chun To (unissued)  (Note d)  (0.15%)

Miss Lo Po Man Ordinary
(i) issued 300,000 – 269,169 569,169

 (Note e)

(ii) unissued 3,000,000 – – 3,000,000
(Note b)

Total (i) & (ii): 3,569,169
(0.35%)

Mr. Kenneth Ng Ordinary 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000
Kwai Kai (unissued)  (Note c)  (0.20%)
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Number of shares held
Total

(Approximate
percentage

of the
Family/ issued shares

Name of associated Name of Class of Personal Corporate Other as at 31st
corporation Director shares held interests interests interests December, 2009)

2. 8D International Mr. Lo Yuk Sui Ordinary – 1,000 – 1,000
(BVI) Limited (issued)  (Note f)  (100%)

3. Regal Real Estate Mr. Lo Yuk Sui Units – 2,380,512,734 – 2,380,512,734
Investment Trust (issued)  (Note g)  (74.29%)

Notes:

(a) (i) The interests in 421,400 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held through companies wholly owned by
Century City International Holdings Limited (“CCIHL”), in which Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (“Mr. Lo”) held 50.25%
shareholding interests, and the interests in the other 491,787,861 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held
through companies wholly owned by Paliburg Holdings Limited (“PHL“), in which CCIHL held 58.67% shareholding
interests.

(ii) The interests in 20,000,000 unissued ordinary shares of the Company were held through the interests in the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, entitling the holder thereof to subscribe for a total of 20,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at an adjusted exercise price of HK$7.50 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment).
The options have, and will, become vested in stages, commencing with 40% of options granted from two years
after the offer date of 12th May, 2005 and thereafter a further 20% of options granted for each subsequent year,
and are, and will be, exercisable as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of
Exercise period the Company under vested options

12th May, 2007 to 11th May, 2011 8,000,000
12th May, 2008 to 11th May, 2011 4,000,000
12th May, 2009 to 11th May, 2011 4,000,000
12th May, 2010 to 11th May, 2011 4,000,000

(b) The interests in 3,000,000 unissued ordinary shares of the Company were held through the interests in the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, entitling the holder thereof to subscribe for a total of 3,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at an adjusted exercise price of HK$7.50 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment). The options
have, and will, become vested in stages, commencing with 40% of options granted from two years after the offer date of
25th July, 2005 and thereafter a further 20% of options granted for each subsequent year, and are, and will be,
exercisable as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of
Exercise period the Company under vested options

25th July, 2007 to 24th July, 2011 1,200,000
25th July, 2008 to 24th July, 2011 600,000
25th July, 2009 to 24th July, 2011 600,000
25th July, 2010 to 24th July, 2011 600,000
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(c) The interests in 2,000,000 unissued ordinary shares of the Company were held through the interests in the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, entitling the holder thereof to subscribe for a total of 2,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at an adjusted exercise price of HK$7.50 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment). The options
have, and will, become vested in stages, commencing with 40% of options granted from two years after the offer date of
25th July, 2005 and thereafter a further 20% of options granted for each subsequent year, and are, and will be,
exercisable as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of
Exercise period the Company under vested options

25th July, 2007 to 24th July, 2011 800,000
25th July, 2008 to 24th July, 2011 400,000
25th July, 2009 to 24th July, 2011 400,000
25th July, 2010 to 24th July, 2011 400,000

(d) The interests in 1,500,000 unissued ordinary shares of the Company were held through the interests in the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, entitling the holder thereof to subscribe for a total of 1,500,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at an adjusted exercise price of HK$7.50 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment). The options
have, and will, become vested in stages, commencing with 40% of options granted from two years after the offer date of
25th July, 2005 and thereafter a further 20% of options granted for each subsequent year, and are, and will be,
exercisable as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of
Exercise period the Company under vested options

25th July, 2007 to 24th July, 2011 600,000
25th July, 2008 to 24th July, 2011 300,000
25th July, 2009 to 24th July, 2011 300,000
25th July, 2010 to 24th July, 2011 300,000

(e) The interests in 269,169 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held by Miss Lo Po Man as the beneficiary of a trust.

(f) 400 shares were held through companies controlled by CCIHL, in which Mr. Lo held 50.25% shareholding interests, and
600 shares were held through a company controlled by Mr. Lo.

(g) The interests in 2,375,225,734 units of Regal REIT were held through wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, and the
interests in the other 5,287,000 units of Regal REIT were held through wholly owned subsidiaries of CCIHL. PHL, in which
CCIHL held 58.67% shareholding interests, held 48.66% shareholding interests in the Company. Mr. Lo held 50.25%
shareholding interests in CCIHL.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st December, 2009, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) of the Company, which (a) are required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) are required, pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, during the year, no right has been granted to, or exercised by,
the following persons to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the Company under the Share Option Scheme, and no
option granted to such persons under the Share Option Scheme has been cancelled and lapsed:

(i) any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, or their respective associates;

(ii) any participant under the Share Option Scheme with options granted in excess of the individual limit;

(iii) any employee working under employment contract that is regarded as “continuous contract” for the purpose of the
Employment Ordinance;

(iv) any supplier of goods or services; and

(v) any other participants under the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2009, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the following
substantial shareholders (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO or notified to the Company pursuant to the SFO:

Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying Total the issued

Number ordinary number of ordinary
of issued shares ordinary shares shares as at
ordinary (unissued) (issued and 31st December,

Name of substantial shareholder shares held held unissued) held 2009

CCIHL (Note i) 492,209,261 – 492,209,261 48.70%

Century City BVI Holdings Limited (Note ii) 492,209,261 – 492,209,261 48.70%

Almighty International Limited (Note ii) 491,787,861 – 491,787,861 48.66%

PHL (Note iii) 491,787,861 – 491,787,861 48.66%

Paliburg Development BVI Holdings Limited (Note iv) 491,787,861 – 491,787,861 48.66%

Guo Yui Investments Limited (Note iv) 178,304,466 – 178,304,466 17.64%

Paliburg International Holdings Limited (Note iv) 262,943,209 – 262,943,209 26.01%

Paliburg BVI Holdings Limited (Note iv) 262,943,209 – 262,943,209 26.01%

Taylor Investments Ltd. (Note iv) 154,232,305 – 154,232,305 15.26%

Glaser Holdings Limited (Note iv) 58,682,832 – 58,682,832 5.81%
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Notes:

(i) The interests in ordinary shares held by CCIHL were included in the corporate interests of Mr. Lo Yuk Sui in the Company as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Share Capital” above.

(ii) These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of CCIHL and their interests in the ordinary shares of the Company were
included in the interests held by CCIHL.

(iii) PHL is a listed subsidiary of CCIHL, which held 58.67% shareholding interests in PHL, and PHL’s interests in the ordinary shares
of the Company were included in the interests held by CCIHL.

(iv) These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of PHL and their interests in the ordinary shares of the Company were included
in the interests held by PHL.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware that there is any person
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 31st December, 2009, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO or notified to the Compnay pursuant to the SFO.

Details of directorships of the Company’s Directors in each of those companies which has an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO are set out
as follows:

(1) Mr. Lo Yuk Sui, Mr. Donald Fan Tung, Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To, Miss Lo Po Man, Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai, Mr. Ng
Siu Chan and Mr. Wong Chi Keung are directors of CCIHL and PHL.

(2) Messrs. Lo Yuk Sui, Donald Fan Tung and Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai are directors of all the above-mentioned wholly
owned subsidiaries of CCIHL and PHL.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since the publication of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30th June, 2009 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules is set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$285,000 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$143,000 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Mr. Donald Fan Tung • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$57,200 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$25,750 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Miss Lo Po Man • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$92,650 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai • Entitled to allocated monthly salary, based on services rendered to the Group, in
an amount of HK$96,200 commencing from January 2010. (Notes)

Independent Non-Executive
Director:

Mr. Wong Chi Keung • Presently a responsible officer for Sinox Fund Management Limited, instead of
Legend Capital Partners, Inc., under the SFO.

• Appointment as an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 19th January, 2010.

Notes:

(i) Each Executive Director is also entitled to performance based discretionary bonus, incentive share options and other related
employee benefits and allowances for the executive role in the Group, and normal Director’s fee in the amount of HK$100,000
per annum in acting as a Director of the Company.

(ii) Details of the remunerations of the Executive Directors for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are disclosed in note 9 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules. The updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the preceding section headed
“Directors’ Profile”.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.13 AND 13.16 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

The following disclosure is made by the Company in compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements under Rules
13.13 and 13.16 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules:

Advances to an Entity (Rule 13.13 of Chapter 13)

Details of the advances made to Chest Gain Development Limited (“Chest Gain”), a jointly controlled entity owned as to
70% by the Company and 30% by China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, which is a company listed in Hong Kong
and is not a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, by the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as at 31st December, 2009 are set out below:

Advances Group
(HK$’million)

(A) Principal Amount of Advances 914.5
(B) Interest Receivable 366.7

Total:(A)+(B) 1,281.2

The above advances to Chest Gain in an aggregate sum of HK$1,281.2 million represent contributions of funds to Chest
Gain provided in the form of shareholders’ loans. The advances are unsecured and have no fixed term of repayment,
interest bearing at prime rate per annum. The provision of financial assistance to Chest Gain is for the purpose of
facilitating Chest Gain in the development of the “Regalia Bay” luxury residential project at Rural Building Lot No.1138,
Wong Ma Kok Road, Stanley, Hong Kong (the “Regalia Bay Development”). The site for the Regalia Bay Development was
acquired by Chest Gain at the government land auction held on 3rd June, 1997.

The aggregate advances (including interest receivable) as at 31st December, 2009 provided by the Group to Chest Gain in
the sum of HK$1,281.2 million represented 24.6% of the consolidated total assets of the Group of HK$5,213.9 million
(the “Regal TA”), calculated by reference to its latest audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2009.
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Financial Assistance provided to and Guarantees given for
Affiliated Companies (Rule 13.16 of Chapter 13)

Details of the financial assistance provided to affiliated companies (including Chest Gain) by the Group as at 31st
December, 2009 are set out below:

Name of Principal Amount Interest
Affiliated of Advances Receivable Total
Companies (HK$’million) (HK$’million) (HK$’million)

Chest Gain 914.5 366.7 1,281.2

8D International (BVI) Limited 29.0 – 29.0

8D Matrix Limited 1.3 – 1.3

Bright Future (HK) Limited 5.6 – 5.6

Faith Crown Holdings Limited 176.8 – 176.8

Hang Fok Properties Limited 289.7 – 289.7

1,416.9 366.7 1,783.6

Relevant details in respect of the financial assistance provided to Chest Gain are disclosed above under Rule 13.13 of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

8D International (BVI) Limited (“8D-BVI”) is a 30% owned associate of the Company, which is principally involved in the
development and distribution of technologically advanced security and building related systems and software
development and promotions businesses. The remaining shareholding interests in 8D-BVI are indirectly owned as to 10%
by CCIHL and 60% by Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (“Mr. Lo”) through his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules). The advances
were provided by the Group in the form of shareholder’s loans in proportion to the Company’s shareholding interest in
8D-BVI, for the purpose of financing the working capital of 8D-BVI. The advances are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed term of repayment.

8D Matrix Limited (“8D Matrix”) is a 30% owned associate of the Company (the Company also holds an additional 6%
attributable interest through its holding in 8D-BVI), which is involved in promotions businesses. The remaining
shareholding interests in 8D Matrix are owned as to 10% indirectly by CCIHL and 60% indirectly by Mr. Lo through his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), including 8D-BVI. The advances were provided by the Group in the form of
shareholder’s loans in proportion to the Company’s shareholding interest in 8D Matrix, for the purpose of financing the
working capital of 8D Matrix. The advances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

Bright Future (HK) Limited (“Bright Future”), a 50% owned associate of the Company, owns a 90% effective equity
interest in a foreign enterprise engaged in the operation of a hotel in Qinghai in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The remaining 50% shareholding interest in Bright Future and the remaining 10% equity interest in the aforesaid
foreign enterprise are owned by independent third parties respectively, which are not connected persons (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company.  The advances to Bright Future were provided by the Group in the form of
shareholder’s loans in proportion to the Company’s shareholding interest in Bright Future, for the purpose of funding the
working capital requirements of Bright Future.  The advances to Bright Future are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed term of repayment.
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Faith Crown Holdings Limited (“Faith Crown”), which was previously a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
became a 50% owned jointly controlled entity of the Company in February 2008, holds, through its wholly owned
subsidiaries, interests in a site in Xindu District, Chengdu, the PRC acquired at a public land auction. The remaining 50%
shareholding interest in Faith Crown is indirectly held by Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”), which is
a company listed in Hong Kong and is not a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The
Company holds, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, 2.96% shareholding interests in CIHL and certain convertible
bonds issued by the CIHL group. The first stage of the project will entail the construction on the two separate land
parcels, respectively, a 300-room five-star hotel with extensive facilities and a residential development comprising 9 tower
blocks with total gross floor area of about 1.5 million square feet and providing over 1,200 apartment units.
Development works for the first stage have been commenced and presale of the residential development is expected to
be launched before the end of this year. Stage two of the development project also comprises residential development
which will have total gross floor area of about 1.9 million square feet, while stage three is planned for commercial and
office accommodations with total gross floor area of about 1.5 million square feet. The advances to Faith Crown were
provided by the Group in the form of shareholder’s loans in proportion to the Company’s shareholding interests in Faith
Crown. The advances to Faith Crown are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

Hang Fok Properties Limited (“Hang Fok”), a 50% owned associate of the Company, holds a 59% shareholding interest
in each of the two investee companies, namely Beijing Century City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Jianye
Real Estate Developing Co., Ltd. (both of which are Sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures incorporated in the PRC) (the
“Investee Companies”). The Investee Companies are principally engaged in the development of a property project at
Chao Yang Men Wai Da Jie in the Central Business District of Beijing, the PRC, planned to comprise office, residential,
hotel, commercial and carparking accommodations with a total permissible gross floor area of about 4,630,000 square
feet. One of the Investee Companies has been granted by the relevant authority in the PRC the Land Grant Contracts in
respect of certain portions of the original development site encompassing office, commercial and residential uses. The
remaining 50% shareholding interest in Hang Fok is owned by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of PHL. The remaining
41% equity interests in the Investee Companies are owned by an independent third party, which is not a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The advances to Hang Fok were provided by the Group in the
form of shareholder’s loans in proportion to the Company’s shareholding interest in Hang Fok, for the purpose of
funding the working capital requirements of Hang Fok and its investment in the Investee Companies. The advances to
Hang Fok are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment. Further information relating to the
development project is disclosed in the section headed “Business Review” in the preceding Management Discussion and
Analysis and in note 18 to the financial statements.

As at 31st December, 2009, the aggregate amount of financial assistance provided to affiliated companies by the Group
in the sum of HK$1,783.6 million represented 34.2% of the Regal TA.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other financial assistance provided to and guarantees given for affiliated
companies by the Group as at 31st December, 2009, which were discloseable pursuant to Rule 13.16 of Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules.
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A combined statement of financial position of the abovenamed affiliated companies and the Group’s attributable interest
in these affiliated companies are presented below:

Combined The Group’s
statement of attributable

financial position interest
(HK$’million) (HK$’million)

Non-current assets 2,865.9 643.5
Current assets 968.4 102.5
Current liabilities (254.9) (123.0)
Non-current liabilities (7,186.8) (503.8)

Net liabilities (3,607.4) 119.2

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Company repurchased a total of 3,172,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at an aggregate purchase price of HK$6,117,840 on the Stock Exchange. Details of the repurchases of such
ordinary shares were as follows:

Price per Aggregate
Number of ordinary share purchase

Month of ordinary shares Highest Lowest price
repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

January 2009 1,796,000 2.250 1.740 3,547,420
February 2009 1,376,000 2.000 1.750 2,570,420

Total 3,172,000 6,117,840

Total expenses on shares repurchased 20,598

6,138,438

All the 3,172,000 repurchased ordinary shares, together with 654,000 ordinary shares repurchased in the year of 2008
but not cancelled during that year, totalling 3,826,000 repurchased ordinary shares, were cancelled during the year. The
issued share capital of the Company was accordingly reduced by the par value of the repurchased ordinary shares so
cancelled. The above repurchases were effected by the Directors pursuant to the mandate from shareholders, with a view
to benefit shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of any
listed securities of the Company during the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s 5 largest suppliers and the percentage of turnover
or sales attributable to the Group’s 5 largest customers combined in respect of goods and services was in each case less
than 30% of the total amount involved.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The details of movements in investment properties during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

The details of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

The details of movements in the share capital and share options of the Company, together with the reasons therefor,
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

The details of movements in the share premium account during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The details of movements in the share option reserve account during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

The details of movements in the capital redemption reserve account during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.
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SPECIAL RESERVE

The details of movements in the special reserve account during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the financial statements.

REVALUATION RESERVES

The details of movements in the revaluation reserves account during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

EXCHANGE EQUALISATION RESERVE

The details of movements in the exchange equalisation reserve account during the year are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s interests in its jointly controlled entities and associates are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

The details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st December, 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to HK$3,444.6 million, of which HK$68.7 million has been proposed as final dividend for
the year.

In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$879.2 million, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

LO YUK SUI
Chairman

Hong Kong
22nd March, 2010
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices and procedures.  Review of existing
policies and practices in respect of the management and corporate matters of the Group has been conducted by the
Company. Enhancement to the current standards for complying with new requirements, revision of the existing policies
and practices and introduction of appropriate new measures have been implemented. Periodic review of the system and
controls within the Group will be carried out by the Company to comply with the prevailing standards and requirements
of good corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31st December, 2009, except that:

(1) The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated and performed by two different individuals
due to practical necessity to cater to the Group’s corporate operating structure.

(2) The Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company were not appointed for
specific terms, but arrangements have been put in place such that the Non-Executive Director and the Independent
Non-Executive Directors would retire, and are subject to re-election, either by rotation in accordance with the
provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or on a voluntary basis, at least once every three years.

Further details relating to the compliance of the CG Code by the Company are set out in the report below.

(I) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

A report on the extent of compliance of and any deviation from the provisions of the CG Code (as summarised
below) by the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2009 is as follows:

A. DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board

Code A.1.1 The board should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals.

Deviation from Code A.1.1

No Four Board Meetings have been held at regular intervals during the year ended 31st December, 2009.

Code A.1.2 Arrangements should be in place to ensure that all directors are given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Deviation from Code A.1.2

No Directors may include matters in the agenda for regular Board Meetings as other business of the
meeting any time after receiving the notice of meeting or at the meeting after all businesses in the
agenda have been transacted.
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Code A.1.3 Notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend.  For all other board meetings, reasonable notice should be given.

Deviation from Code A.1.3

No At least 14 days’ notice is given to the Directors for regular Board Meetings and reasonable notice is
given for other ad hoc Board Meetings, in accordance with relevant provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company.  Arrangements will be made for any Director who cannot be present in person to participate
in and discuss with the other Directors at the meeting through appropriate means of communication.

Code A.1.4 All directors should have access to the advice and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Deviation from Code A.1.4

No The Executive Director who is in charge of the company secretarial function of the Group is in close
liaison with the Company Secretary of the Company to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations, are followed.  All other Directors may make enquiry to the Company Secretary
any time they consider necessary or appropriate for such purposes.

Code A.1.5 Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees should be kept by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting and such minutes should be open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.

Deviation from Code A.1.5

No Minutes of Board Meetings and Meetings of Board Committees are kept by the Company Secretary of
the Company and the appointed secretary of the Board Committees and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Code A.1.6 Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees should record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by directors or
dissenting views expressed.  Draft and final versions of minutes of board meetings should be sent to all
directors for their comment and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
board meeting is held.

Deviation from Code A.1.6

No Minutes of Board Meetings and Meetings of Board Committees have recorded relevant details of the
transactions or matters considered by the Directors at the meetings, rationales for making the decisions
and the resolutions revolved at the meetings. Minutes of the meetings are circulated to the Directors
for review and signing within a reasonable time.
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Code A.1.7 There should be a procedure agreed by the board to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the issuer’s expense.  The board
should resolve to provide separate independent professional advice to directors to assist the relevant
director or directors to discharge his/their duties to the issuer.

Deviation from Code A.1.7

No In the event that independent professional advice is required or considered necessary for the Directors
to make decisions on any transactions or matters concerning the Group, any Director may after
consulting the Chairman of the Board, or the Directors may resolve at the Board Meeting held for
considering the relevant transaction or matter to, seek independent professional advice at the expense
of the Company.

Code A.1.8 If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
board which the board has determined to be material, the matter should not be dealt with by way of
circulation or by a committee (except an appropriate board committee set up for that purpose pursuant
to a resolution passed in a board meeting) but a board meeting should be held. Independent non-
executive directors who, and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be
present at such board meeting.

Deviation from Code A.1.8

No An ad hoc full Board Meeting will be convened for considering and approving any matter which the
Board has determined to be material and in which any substantial shareholder or Director of the
Company has a conflict of interest.  The Board Meeting will be scheduled for an appropriate time that
the disinterested Independent Non-Executive Directors shall be able to attend.  Any substantial
shareholder or Director who has a conflict of interest and any of his/her associates will abstain from
voting at the Meeting and not be counted as quorum of the Meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company.

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code A.2.1 The roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Deviation from Code A.2.1

Yes Due to practical necessity on account of the Group’s corporate operating structure, the roles of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are both performed by Mr. Lo Yuk Sui, the effective controlling
shareholder of the Company, who oversees the overall policy and decision making of the Group. A
Chief Operating Officer has been appointed to take up responsibility for overseeing the hotel business
operations of the Group.

Code A.2.2 The chairman should ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings.

Deviation from Code A.2.2

No The Chairman takes the role of briefing the Directors issues arising at the Board Meetings or, in
appropriate circumstance, delegates this role to Executive Directors who are primarily involved in and in
possession of comprehensive details about the relevant issue.



P.44 A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report (Cont’d)

Code A.2.3 The chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors receive adequate information, which
must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

Deviation from Code A.2.3

No The Chairman takes active efforts to ensure that the Executive Directors or executives who are primarily
involved in the relevant transaction or matter will provide to Directors adequate information, which is
complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

A.3 Board composition

Code A.3.1 The independent non-executive directors should be expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of directors of the issuer.

Deviation from Code A.3.1

No Identification of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been shown on announcements and
other corporate communications of the Company to its shareholders.

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

Code A.4.1 Non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Deviation from Code A.4.1

Yes The Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company were not
appointed for specific terms. However, arrangements have been put in place such that the Non-
Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors would retire, and are subject to
re-election, either by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or on
a voluntary basis, at least once every three years.

Code A.4.2 All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Deviation from Code A.4.2

No Pursuant to relevant provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company and is therefore subject
to re-election by the shareholders at that annual general meeting after his/her appointment.  In
compliance with the requirements under this Code, all Directors would retire at annual general
meetings at least once every three years either by rotation pursuant to the retirement provisions of the
Bye-laws or on a voluntary basis. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9th June,
2009, three Directors, who had been in office for three years, retired and were re-elected at that
meeting.
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A.5 Responsibilities of directors

Code A.5.1 Every newly appointed director of an issuer should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment, and subsequently such briefing and professional
development as is necessary, to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the issuer and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and
governance policies of the issuer.

Deviation from Code A.5.1

No The Chairman or an Executive Director so delegated is responsible for providing every newly appointed
Director with an induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the operations and business of the Group.  With respect to compliance
matters, the Company Secretary is responsible for providing any new Director with information and
materials relating to his/her responsibilities under applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.
Subsequent updating about the latest changes and development of such requirements will be sent to
the Directors by the Company Secretary.

Code A.5.2 The functions of non-executive directors should include but should not be limited to the following:

(a) participating in board meetings of the issuer to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the audit, remuneration, nomination and other governance committees, if invited; and

(d) scrutinising the issuer’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitoring the reporting of performance.

Deviation from Code A.5.2

No The Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors perform the functions as set
out in this Code.

Code A.5.3 Every director should ensure that he can give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the issuer
and should not accept the appointment if he cannot do so.

Deviation from Code A.5.3

No Every Director contributes sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company and the Group as
appropriate for the roles undertaken.
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Code A.5.4 Directors must comply with their obligations under the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules and, in addition, the board
should establish written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees (as defined in this Code) in respect of their dealings in the securities of the issuer.

Deviation from Code A.5.4

No The Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard under the Model
Code and the “Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Regal Hotels International Holdings
Limited” (the “Regal Code”) adopted by the Company, on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code, as the code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the
Directors during the year ended 31st December, 2009.

The Board has also adopted the “Guidelines for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees of Regal
Hotels International Holdings Limited” (the “Regal Guidelines”), on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code, in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.

The Regal Code and the Regal Guidelines are available on the website of the Company.

A.6 Supply of and access to information

Code A.6.1 In respect of regular board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and
accompanying board papers should be sent in full to all directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days
before the intended date of a board or board committee meeting (or such other period as agreed).

Deviation from Code A.6.1

No Agenda and relevant board papers for Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings have been
timely sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Meetings (or such other
period as agreed).

Code A.6.2 Management has an obligation to supply the board and its committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions.  The information supplied must be complete
and reliable.

Deviation from Code A.6.2

No Any Director may require information in addition to those provided by management and make further
enquiries where necessary.  Each Director has separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

Code A.6.3 All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials.  Such papers and related
materials should be prepared in such form and quality as will enable the board to make an informed
decision on matters placed before it.  Where queries are raised by directors, steps must be taken to
respond as promptly and fully as possible.

Deviation from Code A.6.3

No All relevant board papers and related materials are sent to all Directors ahead of time for the Meetings,
with an aim to enabling the Board to make informed decisions on matters placed before it.  In the
event of queries raised by Directors, the Executive Directors and management are obligated to ensure
that the requisite information or materials will be provided to the Directors soonest possible.
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

Code B.1.1 Issuers should establish a remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.  A majority of the members of the remuneration committee should
be independent non-executive directors.

Deviation from Code B.1.1

No The Company has established a Remuneration Committee comprising Mr. Lo Yuk Sui, the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, as Chairman of the Committee, and Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen,
Mr. Ng Siu Chan and Mr. Wong Chi Keung, all Independent Non-Executive Directors, as members, with
written terms of reference which deal clearly with the authority and duties of the Committee.

Code B.1.2 The remuneration committee should consult the chairman and/or chief executive officer about their
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive directors and have access to professional
advice if considered necessary.

Deviation from Code B.1.2

No The proposals relating to the remuneration of other Executive Directors are formulated by consultation
amongst the members of the Remuneration Committee which is presided by the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Professional advice in such respect is sought if considered necessary.

Code B.1.3 The terms of reference of the remuneration committee should include, as a minimum, the specific
duties as set out in this Code.

Deviation from Code B.1.3

No The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are set up with reference to the requirements
under this Code.

Code B.1.4 The remuneration committee should make available its terms of reference, explaining its role and the
authority delegated to it by the board.

Deviation from Code B.1.4

No The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the Company.

Code B.1.5 The remuneration committee should be provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

Deviation from Code B.1.5

No The Remuneration Committee has been and will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Code C.1.1 Management should provide such explanation and information to the board as will enable the board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the board for approval.

Deviation from Code C.1.1

No The Executive Director and other executives of the Group who are in charge of the financial reporting
function have provided detailed explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

Code C.1.2 The directors should acknowledge in the Corporate Governance Report their responsibility for preparing
the accounts, and there should be a statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements.

Deviation from Code C.1.2

No Relevant acknowledgement by the Directors of their responsibility in preparing financial statements of
the Group is stated in this Corporate Governance Report.

In the Independent Auditors’ Report contained in this Annual Report, the Auditors state their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group.

Code C.1.3 The board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment extends to
annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Deviation from Code C.1.3

No The Board uses all reasonable endeavours to ensure that a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment is presented in all reports, announcements or other disclosures as required to be made by
the Company under the Listing Rules and other applicable statutes and regulations.

C.2 Internal controls

Code C.2.1 The directors should at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the issuer and its subsidiaries and report to shareholders that they have done so in their
Corporate Governance Report.  The review should cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Deviation from Code C.2.1

No The Directors have conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions.  Proposals on further enhancement of the system of internal control of the
Group, if required or necessary, are being implemented from time to time.
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Code C.2.2 The board’s annual review should, in particular, consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the issuer’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Deviation from Code C.2.2

No As a manpower policy of the Group, which is subject to regular review by the Directors and senior
management, adequate resources have been allocated to the accounting and financial reporting
function with staff members possessing appropriate qualifications and experience engaged in the
discharge of the relevant functions. The relevant staff members attend seminars and workshops
organised by the professional accounting bodies on a regular basis, and a reasonable budget has been
allocated for continuous professional development purposes.

C.3 Audit Committee

Code C.3.1 Full minutes of audit committee meetings should be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting
(who should normally be the company secretary). Draft and final versions of minutes of the audit
committee meetings should be sent to all members of the committee for their comment and records
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Deviation from Code C.3.1

No Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings of the Company are kept by the Company Secretary who is
appointed the secretary of the Audit Committee, after finalisation with the members of the Audit
Committee within a reasonable time after the Meetings.

Code C.3.2 A former partner of the issuer’s existing auditing firm should be prohibited from acting as a member of
the issuer’s audit committee for a period of 1 year commencing on the date of his ceasing:

(a) to be a partner of the firm; or

(b) to have any financial interest in the firm,

whichever is the later.

Deviation from Code C.3.2

No None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing Auditors.

Code C.3.3 The terms of reference of the audit committee should include at least the duties as specified in the CG
Code.

Deviation from Code C.3.3

No The Audit Committee is established with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with terms of
reference, explaining its role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.
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Code C.3.4 The audit committee should make available its terms of reference, explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board.

Deviation from Code C.3.4

No The terms of reference of the Audit Committee explaining its role and the authority delegated to it by
the Board are available on the website of the Company.

Code C.3.5 Where the board disagrees with the audit committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors, the issuer should include in the Corporate Governance Report a
statement from the audit committee explaining its recommendation and also the reason(s) why the
board has taken a different view.

Deviation from Code C.3.5

No There has not been any disagreement between the Audit Committee and the Board on the selection
and appointment of the external Auditors of the Company.

Code C.3.6 The audit committee should be provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

Deviation from Code C.3.6

No The Company ensures that sufficient resources will be provided to the Audit Committee for discharging
its duties.

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

Code D.1.1 When the board delegates aspects of its management and administration functions to management, it
must at the same time give clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect
to the circumstances where management should report back and obtain prior approval from the board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the issuer.

Deviation from Code D.1.1

No All material policies and decisions remain within the authority of the Board as a whole. The Board only
delegates authorities to management to an extent that would not significantly hinder or reduce the
ability of the Board to discharge its proper functions as a whole.

Code D.1.2 An issuer should formalise the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to management.  It
should review those arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the issuer.

Deviation from Code D.1.2

No The functions of the Board and those delegated to management of the Company are properly
distinguished and clarified.  Review of the formalised arrangements will be carried out on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Company.
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D.2 Board Committees

Code D.2.1 Where board committees are established to deal with matters, the board should prescribe sufficiently
clear terms of reference to enable such committees to discharge their functions properly.

Deviation from Code D.2.1

No The Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee are established with sufficiently clear terms of
reference to enable such committees to discharge their functions properly.

Code D.2.2 The terms of reference of board committees should require such committees to report back to the
board on their decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their
ability to do so (such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

Deviation from Code D.2.2

No The respective terms of reference of Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee require such
committees to report back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

Code E.1.1 In respect of each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a separate resolution should be
proposed by the chairman of that meeting.

Deviation from Code E.1.1

No Separate Resolution on each substantially separate issue was proposed by the Chairman of Meeting at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in 2009. Proposed election of Directors of the
Company were put to vote by a separate Resolution for each nominated Director.

Code E.1.2 The chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting and arrange for the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the chairman
of such committees, another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
be available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.  The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should also be available to answer questions at any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent shareholders’
approval.

Deviation from Code E.1.2

No The Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit Committee had attended the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held in 2009. Questions were raised by certain shareholders at the
Meeting concerning the Group’s business affairs, which were responded to by the Chairman and
certain Executive Directors of the Board.

At any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval, the chairman of the independent board committee (if any) would
be available to answer questions at that meeting.
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Code E.1.3 The issuer should arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business
days in the case of all other general meetings.

Deviation from Code E.1.3

No Notice of more than 20 clear business days for convening the annual general meeting of the Company
held in 2009 was sent to the shareholders of the Company. There was no special general meeting of
the Company convened and held during the year of 2009.

E.2 Voting by Poll

Code E.2.1 The chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting ensure that an explanation is
provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer any questions from
shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.

Deviation from Code E.2.1

No The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in 2009 had at the commencement
of the Meeting demanded that the voting on all resolutions to be put forth at the Meeting be taken by
poll. The Chairman also informed the Meeting that he would answer any questions about the poll
procedures when the Meeting proceeded to the poll taking process.

(II) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

As reported in the preceding section of this report headed “Corporate Governance Practices”, the Company has
adopted the Regal Code, on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code, as the
code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors of the Company.

Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code and the Regal Code during the year ended 31st December, 2009.
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(III) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Donald Fan Tung
Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To
Miss Lo Po Man
Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai
Mr. Allen Wan Tze Wai (appointed on 1st March, 2010)

Non-Executive Director:

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP (Vice Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen
Mr. Ng Siu Chan
Mr. Wong Chi Keung

The personal and biographical details of the Directors, including the relationship among them, are disclosed in the
preceding section headed “Directors’ Profiles” contained in this Annual Report.

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Company has fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules regarding the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the requirement that at least one of
these Directors must have appropriate professional qualifications.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.  The Company considers that all Independent Non-Executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board conducts regular meetings to discuss and decide on major corporate, strategic, business and operational
issues.  Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board members in a timely manner in order to enable
them to discharging their duties.

In the year of 2009, the attendance rates of individual Board members of the Company were as follows:

Name of Directors Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu (Chief Operating Officer) 4/5
Mr. Donald Fan Tung 5/5
Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To 5/5
Miss Lo Po Man 5/5
Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai 5/5

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP (Vice Chairman) 5/5

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen 5/5
Mr. Ng Siu Chan 5/5
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 5/5

(IV) NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee.  The Board is responsible for the procedure of selecting and
appointing Directors.

Those Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting and,
being eligible, may offer for re-election.
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(V) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is established with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee currently comprises the following members:

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman of the Committee)
Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen (Member)
Mr. Ng Siu Chan (Member)

Non-Executive Director:

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP (Member)

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of the interim
and final financial statements.

As both the Board and the Audit Committee recommended to re-appoint the current external Auditors, Messrs.
Ernst & Young, no circumstances exist as would require an explanation from the Audit Committee as to why the
Board has taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external Auditors.

In the year of 2009, the Audit Committee met twice and the meetings were attended by the external Auditors of
the Company. The attendance rates of individual Audit Committee members of the Company were as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members Attendance

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman of the Committee) 2/2
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, GBS, JP 2/2
Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen 2/2
Mr. Ng Siu Chan 2/2
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(VI) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has formed the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference that deal with its
authority and duties.  The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website.  The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following members:

Executive Director:

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen (Member)
Mr. Ng Siu Chan (Member)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Member)

Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai, an Executive Director of the Company, has been appointed to act as the Secretary of the
Committee.

In the year of 2009, the Remuneration Committee met once. The attendance rates of individual Remuneration
Committee members of the Company were as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members Attendance

Mr. Lo Yuk Sui (Chairman of the Committee) 1/1
Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen 1/1
Mr. Ng Siu Chan 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 1/1

(VII) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Group,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and ensure that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently and the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.  The Directors also ensure the financial statements are
published in a timely manner.

The statement by the external Auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, about their reporting responsibilities is set out in
the Independent Auditors‘ Report contained in this Annual Report.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, they are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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(VIII) INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the Group during the
year of 2009, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions with a view
to safeguarding the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

Management of the Company has put into effect a full set of corporate policies and procedures as well as detailed
operating manuals for the hotel operations of the Group, with an objective to achieving a sound internal control
system. Separate meetings attended by Directors, Group Financial Controller, Area Financial Controller, Hotel
General Managers and Hotel Financial Controllers are held regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system, to identify any significant control failings or weaknesses, and also to review the need for any
control improvements or updating to respond to changes in the business and external environment. Regular
management audits have also been performed by the Area Financial Control department on the internal control
systems of individual hotels to ensure that there are no significant control failings or weaknesses. Recommendations
for improvement are forwarded to individual hotels’ management for implementation. While the regular monitoring
of the internal control mechanisms is mainly conducted by delegated Directors and senior management staff
members, support and advice from external consultants and professionals are sought as and when required.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Accordingly, while periodic committee meetings are held with the delegated Directors and senior
management staff members, clear instructions have been provided to management of the Company that any
material issues relating to the internal control system, particularly any incidence of significant control failings or
weaknesses that has had, or might have, a material impact on the business of the Group is to be reported to the
Board and the Audit Committee of the Company on a timely basis.

(IX) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Messrs. Ernst & Young have been re-appointed as the external auditors of the Company at the 2009 Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the forthcoming 2010 Annual General Meeting.

The amount of fees payable to Messrs. Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 is HK$2.7 million (2008 - HK$3.8 million). The amount of remuneration payable to the auditors of
the Company relating to non-audit service for the year ended 31st December, 2009 is HK$0.2 million (2008 -
HK$0.3 million).
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2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

REVENUE 5 1,381.2 1,511.8
Cost of sales (1,611.4) (1,545.5)

Gross loss (230.2) (33.7)

Other income and gains 5 43.2 43.1
Administrative expenses (151.6) (172.8)
Other operating expenses 6 (0.8) (59.3)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss, net 311.4 (145.7)
Fair value gains upon reclassification of

properties held for sale to investment properties 34.2 358.5
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties 107.0 (321.6)

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION 113.2 (331.5)

Depreciation (6.4) (4.0)

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 106.8 (335.5)

Finance costs 8 (4.9) (9.9)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly controlled entities (2.3) (4.9)
Associates 344.2 (457.9)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7 443.8 (808.2)

Income tax 11 (12.7) (0.6)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ALLOCATION
BETWEEN EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
AND MINORITY INTERESTS 431.1 (808.8)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 12 431.1 (808.8)
Minority interests – –

431.1 (808.8)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 14

Basic and Diluted HK42.6 cents HK(78.6) cents

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ALLOCATION
BETWEEN EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
AND MINORITY INTERESTS 431.1 (808.8)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS):

Available-for-sale investment:
Change in fair value – (0.8)
Reclassification adjustment for loss included

in the consolidated income statement 0.8 –

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 1.0 1.1

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates/jointly controlled entity 1.2 40.0

Share of other comprehensive loss of
the listed associate (20.0) (109.7)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (17.0) (69.4)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 414.1 (878.2)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 414.1 (878.2)
Minority interests – –

414.1 (878.2)
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2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 38.2 16.8
Investment properties 16 805.0 855.0
Interests in jointly controlled entities 17 176.6 203.8
Interests in associates 18 584.9 517.4
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 358.0 423.0
Available-for-sale investment 20 – 3.1
Other loan 21 13.3 36.1
Pledged bank deposits 1,000.0 1,000.0

Total non-current assets 2,976.0 3,055.2

CURRENT ASSETS
Hotel inventories 22 21.2 22.7
Properties held for sale 23 795.6 963.5
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 24 261.7 217.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 546.1 108.1
Pledged time deposits 3.6 8.3
Time deposits 251.2 153.3
Cash and bank balances 358.5 307.2

Total current assets 2,237.9 1,780.2

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors and accruals 25 (407.8) (427.2)
Interest bearing bank borrowings 26 (69.4) –
Tax payable (12.8) (3.5)

Total current liabilities (490.0) (430.7)
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2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,747.9 1,349.5

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,723.9 4,404.7

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing bank borrowings 26 (246.8) (268.5)

Net assets 4,477.1 4,136.2

EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Issued capital 29 101.1 101.4
Reserves 30(a) 4,306.0 3,983.0
Proposed final dividend 13 68.7 50.5

4,475.8 4,134.9
Minority interests 1.3 1.3

Total equity 4,477.1 4,136.2

KENNETH NG KWAI KAI LO YUK SUI
Director Director
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2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

Net cash flows used in operating activities 32(a) (401.7) (110.9)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure for investment properties – (1.3)
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (31.2) (5.5)
Proceeds of disposal of investment properties 232.9 –
Deposit refunded for acquisition of land – 134.4
Purchases of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (1.2) (176.0)
Proceeds of disposal of available-for-sale investment 3.1 –
Purchase of available-for-sale investment – (3.9)
Acquisition of additional interest in the listed associate (6.0) (63.4)
Advances to associates (51.2) (4.9)
Repayment from/(advance to) a jointly controlled entity 25.2 (94.1)
Interest received 7.8 42.8
Dividends received from listed investments 2.0 2.1
Distributions received from the listed associate 373.7 357.8
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 4.7 (14.3)
Decrease in loan receivable 22.8 –

Net cash flows from investing activities 582.6 173.7

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary shares 29 (6.2) (141.8)
Drawdown of new loans 748.0 332.4
Repayments of bank loans (699.5) (83.8)
Interest paid (3.3) (12.8)
Dividends paid (70.7) (133.9)
Redemption of convertible preference shares – (129.9)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (31.7) (169.8)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 149.2 (107.0)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 460.5 567.5

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 609.7 460.5

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 358.5 307.2
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of

less than three months when acquired 251.2 153.3

609.7 460.5
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2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries 31 4,478.8 4,139.4

Total non-current assets 4,478.8 4,139.4

CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits and prepayments 0.3 0.2
Cash and bank balances 0.5 0.5

Total current assets 0.8 0.7

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors and accruals (3.8) (5.2)

Total current liabilities (3.8) (5.2)

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (3.0) (4.5)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,475.8 4,134.9

Net assets 4,475.8 4,134.9

EQUITY

Issued capital 29 101.1 101.4
Reserves 30(b) 4,306.0 3,983.0
Proposed final dividends 13 68.7 50.5

Total equity 4,475.8 4,134.9

KENNETH NG KWAI KAI LO YUK SUI
Director Director
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REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The head office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at 11th Floor, 68 Yee Wo Street, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in hotel operation and management, investment in Regal Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Regal REIT”) (which owns the Regal Hotels in Hong Kong), asset management of Regal
REIT, property development and investment, and other investments.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$“) and all values are rounded to the nearest million except where otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2009. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

The acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This method
involves allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net assets
of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Amendments Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements – Cost of an

Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment – Vesting Conditions

and Cancellations
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures –

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 18 Amendment* Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue – Determining whether

an entity is acting as a principal or as an agent
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and

Amendments HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
HKAS 39 Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement – Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (adopted from 1st July, 2009)
Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

(October 2008)**

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).
** The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-

current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations – Plan to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary, which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.
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Other than as further explained below, the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant effect
on these financial statements and there have been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these
financial statements. The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair
value measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a
three-level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised at fair value. In addition, a
reconciliation between the beginning and ending balance is now required for level 3 fair value measurements,
as well as significant transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the
requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity
management. The fair value measurement disclosures are presented in note 38 to the financial statements
while the revised liquidity risk disclosures are presented in note 39 to the financial statements.

(b) HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies how an entity should report information
about its operating segments, based on information about the components of the entity that is available to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of information about the products and services
provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from the
Group’s major customers. The Group concluded that the operating segments determined in accordance with
HKFRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously identified under HKAS 14. These revised
disclosures, including the related revised comparative information, are shown in note 4 to the financial
statements.

 (c) HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In
addition, this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of income and
expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present two statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 1

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards – Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 2

HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First–time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards – Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters 4

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment – Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions 2

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 1

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 6

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 5

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1

HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation –
Classification of Rights Issues 3

HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement – Eligible Hedged Items 1

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 4

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
HKFRS 5 included in Discontinued Operations – Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in
Improvements to HKFRSs a Subsidiary 1

issued in October 2008
HK Interpretation 4 Leases – Determination of the Length of Lease Term in respect of

(Revised in December 2009) Hong Kong Land Leases 2

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The amendments to
HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard or interpretation.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company‘s income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Upon the disposal of interests in subsidiaries, any gain or loss arising thereon, including the realisation of the
attributable reserves, is included in the income statement.

(b) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the
other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets
are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(i) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(ii) a jointly controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(iii) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(iv) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is
in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.



P.70 A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’d)

(c) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of the jointly controlled entity is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. The Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The
Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

(e) Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries and associates, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

The excess for associates is included in the Group’s share of the associates’ profits or losses in the period in
which the investments are acquired.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(g) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset or as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciations.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold properties Over the shorter of 40 years or the remaining lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms
Other furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

(i) Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables and available-for-sale investments, or as derivatives designed as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include other loan, trade debtors, other financial assets included in debtors,
deposits and prepayments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, pledged deposits, time deposits
and cash and cash equivalents.
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Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether
the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at designation.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income statement in other operating
expenses.
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Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investments
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in other income or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income statement and removed from the available-
for-sale investments revaluation reserve. Dividends earned are reported as dividend income and are recognised
in the income statement as other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured because (i) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to assess whether the ability and intention to sell
them in the near term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income
statement.

Fair value

The fair value of financial investments that are traded in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial investments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions and reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same.
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(j) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence
of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited
to the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination of what is
“significant” or ‘’prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the income statement – is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

(k) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flow in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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(l) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade creditors, other financial liabilities included in creditors and
accruals and interest bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Convertible preference shares

The component of the convertible preference shares that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a
liability in the statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. The corresponding dividends on those
shares are charged as interest expense in the income statement. On issuance of the convertible preference
shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised as derivative financial
instrument of the convertible preference shares denominated in foreign currency and included under current
liabilities. The fair value of such derivative financial instrument is reassessed at each date of the statement of
financial position using a binomial valuation model with the corresponding gain or loss from the reassessment
recognised in the income statement.
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(m) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

(n) Offsetting of financial instrument

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously.

(o) Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.

(p) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out
basis and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs expected to be incurred to disposal.

(q) Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are classified as current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
on an individual property basis. Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
prevailing market prices.
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(r) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) hotel and other agency and management services income, in the period in which such services are
rendered;

(ii) proceeds from the sale of properties, on the exchange of legally binding sales contracts;

(iii) rental income, in the period in which the properties are let and on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(iv) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(v) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established;

(vi) net gain or loss from the sale of investments in listed shares, on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are exchanged; and

(vii) bakery operations income, when the goods are delivered to the customers.

(s) Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange equalisation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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(t) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

• where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

• where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has became probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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(u) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

(v) Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7th November, 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfil led. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per ordinary share.

Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, part or all of which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting with the employee
partly or fully in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the relevant central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
schemes.
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(w) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (1) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (2) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (3) has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate;

(iii) the party is a jointly controlled entity;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

(x) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

(y) Dividends

Final dividend proposed by the Directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until it has been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When the dividend has been approved by the shareholders and declared, it is recognised as
a liability.

Interim dividend is simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum of
association and bye-laws grant the Directors the authority to declare interim dividend. Consequently, interim
dividend is recognised immediately as a liability when it is proposed and declared.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

(a) Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(b) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised deferred tax
assets at 31st December, 2009 was HK$440.6 million (2008 - HK$374.9 million). Further details are contained
in note 28 to the financial statements.

Estimation of amortised cost of other loan

Other loan is a non-derivative financial asset and is stated at its amortised cost which is calculated using the
discounted cash flow model based on estimated future cash inflow in repayment of the loan. The
determination of the value requires the Group to make assumptions and estimates of the expected future cash
flows, including an appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of those net cash flows.

Measurement of fair value of equity-settled transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility, dividend yield and risk free interest rate. Such cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group‘s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the hotel operation and management and hotel ownership segment engages in hotel operations and the
provision of hotel management services, and the ownership in hotel properties for rental income through the
Group’s investment in Regal REIT;

(b) the asset management segment engages in the provision of asset management services to Regal REIT;

(c) the property development and investment segment includes investments in properties for sale and for rental
income, and the provision of property agency and management services;

(d) the securities investment segment engages in securities trading and investment businesses; and

(e) the others segment mainly comprises travel agency services and bakery operations.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain interest income, finance costs, head office
and corporate gains and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, cash and bank balances, and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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Geographical Information

(a) Revenue from external customers

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Hong Kong 1,337.0 1,467.1
Mainland China 44.2 44.7

1,381.2 1,511.8

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Hong Kong 996.7 912.4
Mainland China 608.0 680.6

1,604.7 1,593.0

The non-current assets information above is based on the location of assets and excludes financial
instruments.

Information about a major customer

No further information about a major customer is presented as no more than 10% of the Group’s revenue was
derived from sales to any single customer.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue (which is also the Group’s turnover), other income and gains are analysed as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Revenue
Hotel operations and management services 1,051.6 1,329.9
Other operations, including estate management, estate agency,

travel agency and bakery operations 44.3 51.7
Rental income:

Hotel properties 27.4 31.0
Properties held for sale 2.2 14.4
Investment properties 24.2 15.9

Net gain from sale of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 30.2 0.1

Dividend income from listed investments 2.1 2.1
Asset management service 70.8 66.7
Sale of properties 128.4 –

1,381.2 1,511.8

Other income
Bank interest income 2.8 24.8
Interest income from a jointly controlled entity – 1.3
Other interest income 5.6 15.1
Others 1.7 1.8

10.1 43.0

Gains
Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument – 0.1
Gain on disposal of investment properties 33.1 –

33.1 0.1

43.2 43.1
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6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses represent the following items:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investment 0.8 –
Loss on settlement of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss – 59.3

0.8 59.3
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Cost of sales# 1,611.4 1,545.5
Cost of inventories sold and services provided 522.3 567.9
Depreciation 6.4 4.0
Write off of items of properties, plant and equipment – 0.1
Impairment of trade debtors, net 0.9 –
Employee benefit expense (inclusive of directors’

remuneration disclosed in note 9):
Salaries, wages and benefits* 368.8 417.0
Equity-settled share option expense 3.8 8.4
Staff retirement scheme contributions 19.1 18.9
Less: Forfeited contributions (0.8) (1.0)

Net staff retirement scheme contributions 18.3 17.9

390.9 443.3

Auditors’ remuneration 2.7 3.8
Minimum lease payments under operating leases:

Land and buildings** 737.9 735.9
Other equipment 0.2 0.1

738.1 736.0

Gross rental income (53.8) (61.3)
Less: Outgoings 8.6 9.5

Net rental income (45.2) (51.8)

# Cost of sales does not include depreciation, which are separately shown on the face of the consolidated income statement.
Cost of sales also includes cost of inventories sold and services provided.

* Inclusive of an amount of HK$312.3 million (2008 - HK$347.3 million) classified under cost of inventories sold and services
provided.

** Inclusive of an amount of HK$727.2 million (2008 - HK$723.2 million) classified under cost of sales.
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8. FINANCE COSTS

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years 4.9 2.2
Dividends on convertible preference shares

(classified as financial liabilities) – 7.7

Total finance costs 4.9 9.9

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Fees 1.6 1.6

Other emoluments:
Salaries and other allowances 12.5 12.8
Performance related/discretionary bonuses 1.5 1.4
Equity-settled share option expense 3.5 7.2
Staff retirement scheme contributions 0.8 0.8

19.9 23.8

(a) Non-executive directors

The fees paid to non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Non-executive director:
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming 0.15 0.15

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Alice Kan Lai Kuen 0.15 0.15
Mr. Ng Siu Chan 0.15 0.15
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 0.20 0.20

0.65 0.65
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company were entitled to a total sum of HK$0.50 million (2008 -
HK$0.50 million) as directors’ fees, including the fees entitled by those independent non-executive directors for
serving as audit committee members, for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

There were no other emoluments payable to the non-executive directors during the year (2008 - Nil).

(b) Executive directors

Performance Staff
Salaries and related/ Equity-settled retirement

other discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees* allowances bonuses expense contributions remuneration

HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

2009
Mr. Lo Yuk Sui 0.20 7.34 0.56 1.88 0.34 10.32
Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu 0.10 1.68 0.42 0.41 0.17 2.78
Mr. Donald Fan Tung 0.20 0.67 0.11 0.28 0.07 1.33
Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To 0.20 0.30 0.05 0.21 0.03 0.79
Miss Lo Po Man 0.10 1.08 0.18 0.41 0.08 1.85
Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai 0.10 1.44 0.24 0.28 0.11 2.17

0.90 12.51 1.56 3.47 0.80 19.24

2008
Mr. Lo Yuk Sui 0.20 7.62 0.56 3.28 0.34 12.00
Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu 0.10 1.68 0.28 1.02 0.17 3.25
Mr. Donald Fan Tung 0.20 0.67 0.11 0.68 0.07 1.73
Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To 0.20 0.30 0.05 0.51 0.03 1.09
Miss Lo Po Man 0.10 1.08 0.18 1.02 0.08 2.46
Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai 0.10 1.44 0.24 0.68 0.11 2.57

0.90 12.79 1.42 7.19 0.80 23.10

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

* The fees entitled by Mr. Lo Yuk Sui, Mr. Donald Fan Tung and Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To also include a fee of HK$0.1 million
(2008 - HK$0.1 million) entitled by each of these Directors for serving as a non-executive director of Regal Portfolio
Management Limited which is the manager of Regal REIT, the listed associate of the Company.
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10. SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest-paid individuals included four (2008 - four) Directors, details of whose remuneration are disclosed
in note 9 to the financial statement. The emoluments of the remaining one (2008 - one) highest-paid individual,
who was not a Director, are as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Salaries and other emoluments 3.4 3.5
Performance related/discretionary bonuses 0.3 1.3

3.7 4.8

The emoluments of the non-director, highest paid individual for the year ended 31st December, 2009 fell within the
band of HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 (2008 - HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000).

11. INCOME TAX

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Group:
Current - Hong Kong

Charge for the year 12.4 0.1

Current - Overseas
Charge for the year 0.3 0.5

Total tax charge for the year 12.7 0.6

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated by applying the applicable tax rate of 16.5% (2008 -
16.5%) to the estimated assessable profits which were earned in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Taxes on the profits of subsidiaries operating overseas are calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions in which they operate.
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is
as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Profit/(Loss) before tax 443.8 (808.2)

Tax at the statutory tax rate 73.2 (133.4)
Profits and losses attributable to jointly controlled

entities and associates (56.4) 76.4
Higher tax rates of other countries 0.1 0.1
Income not subject to tax (81.8) (15.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax 15.2 86.0
Tax losses utilised from previous years (15.7) (49.1)
Increase in deferred tax assets not recognised

during the year 79.0 36.4
Others (0.9) (0.2)

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 12.7 0.6

The Group did not share the tax charge attributable to Regal REIT during the year since the Group’s share of profit
of Regal REIT for the year was offset against the previously unrecognised share of loss of Regal REIT. In the prior
year, the share of tax credit attributable to Regal REIT amounting to HK$266.6 million was included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated income statement.

No provision for tax is required for the jointly controlled entities and other associates as no assessable profits were
earned by the jointly controlled entities and other associates during the year (2008 - Nil).

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the year ended 31st December, 2009
includes a profit of HK$414.1 million (2008 - loss of HK$878.2 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 30(b)).



P.96 A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’d)

13. DIVIDENDS

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Interim - HK2.0 cents
(2008 - HK3.0 cents, as adjusted for the Share Consolidation
(notes 14 and 29)) per ordinary share 20.2 30.6

Proposed final - HK6.8 cents
(2008 - HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 68.7 50.5

88.9 81.1

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parent of HK$431.1 million (2008 - loss of HK$808.8 million), and on the weighted
average of 1,011.1 million (2008 - 1,029.3 million, as adjusted for the effect of the consolidation of ordinary
shares of the Company on the basis that every ten then existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$0.10 effective from 23rd October, 2008 (the
“Share Consolidation”)) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per ordinary share amount presented for the year ended
31st December, 2009 in respect of a dilution as the exercise price of the share options of the Company
outstanding during the year is higher than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares and,
accordingly, they have no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per ordinary share.

No adjustment had been made to the basic loss per ordinary share amount presented for the year ended 31st
December, 2008 in respect of a dilution as (i) the conversion of the convertible preference shares of the
Company was anti-dilutive for that year and was not included in the calculation of diluted loss per ordinary
share; and (ii) the exercise price of the share options of the Company outstanding during that year was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares and, accordingly, they had no dilutive effect
on the basic loss per ordinary share.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Other

furniture,
fixtures

Leasehold Leasehold and Motor
properties improvements equipment vehicles Total

HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

31st December, 2009

At 31st December, 2008 and
1st January, 2009:

Cost 5.3 15.5 10.9 1.9 33.6
Accumulated depreciation (2.1) (7.1) (6.8) (0.8) (16.8)

Net carrying amount 3.2 8.4 4.1 1.1 16.8

At 1st January, 2009,
net of accumulated depreciation 3.2 8.4 4.1 1.1 16.8

Additions – 25.1 2.3 0.5 27.9
Disposals – (0.1) – – (0.1)
Depreciation provided during the year (0.1) (3.8) (2.0) (0.5) (6.4)

At 31st December, 2009,
net of accumulated depreciation 3.1 29.6 4.4 1.1 38.2

At 31st December, 2009:
Cost 5.3 40.5 12.6 2.4 60.8
Accumulated depreciation (2.2) (10.9) (8.2) (1.3) (22.6)

Net carrying amount 3.1 29.6 4.4 1.1 38.2
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Group
Other

furniture,
fixtures

Leasehold Leasehold and Motor
properties improvements equipment vehicles Total

HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

31st December, 2008

At 1st January, 2008:
Cost 5.3 7.6 9.6 1.4 23.9
Accumulated depreciation (2.0) (5.1 ) (5.3) (0.4 ) (12.8)

Net carrying amount 3.3 2.5 4.3 1.0 11.1

At 1st January, 2008,
net of accumulated depreciation 3.3 2.5 4.3 1.0 11.1

Additions – 7.9 1.4 0.5 9.8
Disposals – – (0.1) – (0.1)
Depreciation provided during the year (0.1) (2.0 ) (1.5) (0.4 ) (4.0)

At 31st December, 2008,
net of accumulated depreciation 3.2 8.4 4.1 1.1 16.8

At 31st December, 2008:
Cost 5.3 15.5 10.9 1.9 33.6
Accumulated depreciation (2.1) (7.1 ) (6.8) (0.8 ) (16.8)

Net carrying amount 3.2 8.4 4.1 1.1 16.8

The leasehold properties are held under medium term leases and are situated in Hong Kong.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Carrying amount at 1st January 855.0 –
Reclassification from properties held for sales 59.8 816.8
Capital expenditure for the period – 1.3
Disposals (251.0) –
Fair value gain on reclassification of

properties held for sales 34.2 358.5
Gain/(Loss) from fair value adjustments 107.0 (321.6)

Carrying amount at 31st December 805.0 855.0

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31st December, 2009 by independent professionally qualified
valuers with an RICS qualification at HK$805.0 million, on an open market, existing use basis.  Certain of the
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 36(a) to the financial statements.

At 31st December, 2009, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying value of HK$711.0 million (2008 -
HK$432.0 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Share of net liabilities (1,281.5) (1,279.5)
Loans to jointly controlled entities 1,091.4 1,116.6
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 366.7 366.7

176.6 203.8

The loans to the jointly controlled entities and amount due from a jointly controlled entity are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the Directors, these loans are considered as
quasi-equity investments in the jointly controlled entities.
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Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are as follows:

Percentage of
Particulars equity interest

Place of of issued attributable Principal
Name incorporation shares to the Group activity

2009 2008

Chest Gain Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 70(1) 70(1) Property
Limited (“Chest Gain”)  of HK$1 each development

and investment

Faith Crown Holdings British Virgin Ordinary shares 50(2) 50(2) Investment
Limited (“Faith Crown”) Islands  of US$1 each holding

The jointly controlled entities were indirectly held by the Company.

(1) Despite the Group’s holding of a 70% interest in Chest Gain, the Directors have confirmed that neither the
Group nor the other shareholder of Chest Gain has unilateral control over the operating and financing
decisions of Chest Gain in accordance with the agreed terms under the shareholders’ agreement of Chest
Gain. Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate to continue to account for the Group’s interest
therein as a jointly controlled entity.

Pursuant to a supplemental shareholders’ agreement signed on 26th November, 2007 (the “Effective Date”)
(the “Agreement”), the unsold units of the property project of Chest Gain were effectively allocated between
the Group and the other joint venture partner. Under the Agreement, while the legal ownership of the unsold
units remains with Chest Gain, the economic benefits and any liabilities pertaining to the unsold units
allocated to the Group (the “Regal Allocated Units”) have effectively been fully assumed by the Group who
has been vested with the absolute right to deal with these Regal Allocated Units since the Effective Date,
subject to the terms of the Agreement. Accordingly, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
consolidate the results, assets and liabilities attributable to the Regal Allocated Units in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement with effect from the Effective Date.

(2) Following the partial disposal of a 50% equity interest in Faith Crown by the Group during the prior year,
Faith Crown became a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

The major asset of Faith Crown is its 100% indirect interest in a property development project in Xindu
District, Chengdu in the Sichuan Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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The following table illustrates the summarised financial statements of the Group’s jointly controlled entities:

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Share of jointly controlled entities’ assets and
liabilities:

Non-current assets 130.2 128.1
Current assets 51.6 164.3
Current liabilities (5.4) (6.7)
Non-current liabilities (1,457.9) (1,565.2)

Net liabilities (1,281.5) (1,279.5)

Share of jointly controlled entities’ results:

Other income and gains 1.4 1.2
Total expenses (3.7) (6.1)

Loss after tax (2.3) (4.9)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group‘s share of capital commitments of Faith Crown in respect of a
property development project was as follows:

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Contracted, but not provided for 82.0 82.0

82.0 82.0
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Listed and unlisted companies:
Share of net assets 258.6 242.3
Loans to/amounts due from associates 326.3 275.1

584.9 517.4

Share of net assets of the listed associate 140.0 –

Market value of an associate listed in Hong Kong 3,919.1 2,244.1

The loans to/amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.  In
the opinion of the Directors, these loans are considered as quasi-equity investments in the associates.

Details of the Group’s principal associates are as follows:

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued equity interest

incorporation/ shares/units  attributable Principal
Name establishment  held to the Group activities

2009 2008

8D International (BVI) Limited British Virgin Ordinary shares 30.0 30.0 Investment
 (“8D-BVI”) Islands of US$1 each holding

8D International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 36.0(1) 36.0(1) Promotions and
of HK$1 each information

technology

8D Matrix Limited British Virgin Ordinary shares 36.0(1) 36.0(1) Investment
Islands of US$1 each holding

Bright Future (HK) Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary shares 50.0 50.0 Investment
of HK$1 each holding

Hang Fok Properties Limited British Virgin Ordinary shares 50.0(2) 50.0(2) Investment
(“Hang Fok”) Islands of US$1 each holding

Regal Real Estate Investment Hong Kong 3,204,394,184 74.12(3) 73.6(3) Property
Trust (“Regal REIT”) units investment

* Not audited by Ernst & Young or other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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(1) The percentage of equity interest includes a 6% attributable interest held through 8D-BVI.

(2) The major asset of Hang Fok is its 59% equity interest in each of two sino-foreign joint ventures, namely Beijing Century
City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Jianye Real Estate Developing Co., Ltd. established in Beijing, the PRC,
which are engaged in a property development project in Beijing, the PRC.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company published on 15th March, 2010, Hang Fok was engaged in arbitration
proceedings in Beijing involving claims by the vendor of the 36% equity interest (comprised within the 59% equity interest
presently held) in the joint venture entities for the rescission of the relevant sale and purchase contracts entered into
between the parties in 2005 and the arbitral tribunal in Beijing has issued in late February 2010 an arbitral award in favour
of the vendor. Hang Fok has lodged an application to the relevant court to set aside the arbitral award. However, having
considered the latest circumstances and taking into regards other litigations, claims and disputes affecting the
development project, a provision of HK$240.0 million has been made by Hang Fok in respect of its investment in the
project. The loss thus attributable to the Group has been reflected in the share of profits and losses of associates in the
consolidated income statement.

(3) Despite the Group’s holding of a 74.12% interest in Regal REIT (including units obtained upon the listing of Regal REIT on
the Stock Exchange and additional interest acquired and units received in settlement of REIT manager’s fees during the
year) and the REIT manager is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, pursuant to the terms of the Trust Deed, the Group
does not have unilateral power to retain or remove the REIT manager. Accordingly, the Group is considered not to have
unilateral power to govern the financial and operating policies of Regal REIT which is therefore not treated as a subsidiary
of the Group. However, the Directors consider that the Group still has significant influence over Regal REIT and therefore
it is appropriate to account for Regal REIT as an associate and equity account for its investment in Regal REIT as an
associate.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Regal REIT that owns the Regal Hongkong Hotel had instituted legal proceedings with the
High Court in 2007 as plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) against a defendant who is the owner of a neighboring commercial
building regarding a claim for reinstatement of easements and rights of way on the 1st floor and basement and for
damages for interference during the period of renovation of that commercial building (the “Claims”). The defendant made
a counterclaim against the Plaintiff with respect to the usage of certain driveway areas on the ground floor of the Regal
Hongkong Hotel (the “Counterclaim”).

On 1st February, 2010, the High Court released a judgement to dismiss the Plaintiff’s Claims and the defendant’s
Counterclaim and made a costs order nisi that the Plaintiff pay the defendant the costs of the Claims and the defendant
pay the Plaintiff the costs of the Counterclaim (the “Judgement”).

Having considered opinions from the Regal REIT’s legal counsel, the directors of the REIT manager take the view that the
Plaintiff has reasonable grounds to make an appeal against the Judgement. On 26th February, 2010, an appeal was filed
by the Plaintiff against the Judgement on the Claims made by the High Court. Accordingly, Regal REIT has not provided for
any losses which could arise from the Judgement, other than its own related legal and other costs.

All associates are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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The Group has not recognised its share of results of Regal REIT because the share of profit of the associate for the
year was offset against the previously unrecognised share of loss of the associate. As at 31st December, 2009, the
Group‘s cumulative unrecognised share of losses of this associate was HK$875.6 million (2008 – HK$962.1 million).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s associates extracted from their
management accounts:

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Assets 15,710.9 15,206.9
Liabilities 7,173.2 6,589.4
Revenues 771.4 763.4
Profit/(Loss) 377.2 (2,175.0)

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Non-current assets:
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, at market value 36.7 28.1
Unlisted debt investment, at fair value 321.3 394.9

358.0 423.0

Current assets:
Listed equity investments, at market value

Hong Kong 203.4 103.5
Elsewhere 4.9 –

Unlisted investments, at fair value 4.5 4.6
Unlisted debt investment, at fair value 333.3 –

546.1 108.1

904.1 531.1

The listed equity investments included under non-current assets and the unlisted debt investments at 31st
December, 2008 and 2009 were designated upon initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information about the investments are provided on
that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.
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The listed equity investments and unlisted investments included under current assets at 31st December, 2008 and
2009 were classified as held for trading.

The unlisted debt investment included under current assets represented the convertible bonds issued by a subsidiary
of Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited (“Cosmopolitan”), a listed company in Hong Kong, in a principal
amount of HK$141.45 million, which are due 2010 and were convertible into 690 million new shares of
Cosmopolitan at an initial conversion price of HK$0.205 per share (“2010 CB”).  The conversion price of 2010 CB
was adjusted to HK$0.2 per share upon the issuance of new convertible bonds by Cosmopolitan group on 25th
February, 2009.  At 31st December, 2009, the 2010 CB in an aggregate principal amount of HK$141.45 million
held by the Group are convertible into a total of 707.3 million new shares of Cosmopolitan at the adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

The unlisted debt investment included under non-current assets represented the investment in another series of
convertible bonds issued by Cosmopolitan group in a principal amount of HK$100.0 million, which are due 2013
and were convertible into 166.7 million new shares of Cosmopolitan at an initial conversion price of HK$0.6 per
share (“2013 CB”).  The Group was also granted an option to subscribe for further 2013 CB in an additional
principal amount of up to HK$100.0 million.  The optional 2013 CB, if fully subscribed for and issued, would be
convertible into 166.7 million new shares of Cosmopolitan at an initial conversion price of HK$0.6 per share.  The
conversion price of 2013 CB was adjusted to HK$0.3 per share upon the issuance of new convertible bonds by
Cosmopolitan group on 25th February, 2009.  At 31st December, 2009, the 2013 CB (including the issued 2013 CB
and, if fully subscribed for and issued, the optional 2013 CB) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200.0 million
are convertible into a total of 666.7 million new shares of Cosmopolitan at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.3
per share.

At 31st December, 2009, the Group also held approximately 2.96% interest in the share capital of Cosmopolitan,
which was included in listed equity investments under non-current assets. On the basis that all outstanding
convertible bonds were converted, and all optional bonds were subscribed and converted, by the Group and other
bond holders, the interest held by the Group in the enlarged share capital of Cosmopolitan would be increased to
32.8%. The results of Cosmopolitan group have not been equity accounted for by the Group as the Directors
consider that despite the Group’s investments in the shares of Cosmopolitan, the 2010 CB and the 2013 CB, the
Group is not in a position to exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policy of Cosmopolitan.

The fair values of the unlisted debt investments have been estimated by an independent professional valuer using
valuation techniques based on quoted market price of the underlying listed security.

The fair values of the unlisted investments included under current assets are based on the market price provided by
financial institutions.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Unlisted investments, at fair value – 3.1

In the prior year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$0.8 million.

21. OTHER LOAN

The amount represents the outstanding balance, net of provision for impairment, of a loan in an original sum of
US$10.0 million (HK$78.0 million) advanced to a hotel owner to assist in financing the interior decoration and pre-
operating expenditure of its hotel in Shanghai, the PRC, which is managed by the Group. The loan is unsecured,
interest-free and was originally repayable commencing from the date of the hotel opening, by way of payments
equivalent to 28% of the hotel’s net operating profit over the tenure of the management contract for the hotel of
15 years.

A provision for impairment in the amount of HK$29.5 million was made during prior years based on the estimated
recoverable amount, taking into account the hotel’s net operating profit projected for the remaining term of the
management contract and the related discounted cash flow forecast.

Pursuant to a new agreement signed with the hotel owner during the year, which supersedes the previous financing
agreement, a partial payment of RMB20 million (approximately HK$22.8 million) was received by the Group and the
remaining balance is repayable before the expiry of the relevant hotel management contract in 2012.

Accordingly, the other loan was classified as loans and receivables and was stated at amortised cost less provision
for impairment of HK$13.3 million as at 31st December, 2009 (2008 - HK$36.1 million), calculated using the
effective interest rate method.

22. HOTEL INVENTORIES

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Hotel and other merchandise 21.2 22.7

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31st December, 2009, the Group’s properties held for sale with a carrying value of HK$308.1 million (2008 -
HK$69.6 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$79.6 million (2008 - HK$106.9 million) representing the trade debtors
of the Group.

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Trade debtors 81.0 108.0
Impairment (1.4) (1.1)

79.6 106.9

Credit terms

Trade debtors, which generally have credit terms of 30 to 90 days, are recognised and carried at their original
invoiced amounts less impairment which is made when collection of the full amounts is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off as incurred.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade debtors relate
to a large number of diversified customers (except for sale proceeds receivable from disposal of properties held for
sale), there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

The aged analysis of such debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Outstanding balances with ages:
Within 3 months 74.9 90.6
Between 4 to 6 months 2.4 12.2
Between 7 to 12 months 0.7 2.5
Over 1 year 3.0 2.7

81.0 108.0
Impairment (1.4) (1.1)

79.6 106.9
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The movements in provision for impairment of trade debtors are as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

At 1st January 1.1 1.2
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 1.1 0.2
Amount written off as uncollectible (0.6) (0.1)
Impairment losses reversed (note 7) (0.2) (0.2)

At 31st December 1.4 1.1

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade debtors
of HK$1.4 million (2008 - HK$1.1 million) with a gross carrying amount before provision of HK$1.5 million (2008 -
HK$2.0 million). The individually impaired trade debtors relate to customers that were in financial difficulties and
only a portion of the balances is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Neither past due nor impaired 50.1 62.5
Within 3 months past due 25.4 35.0
4 to 6 months past due 1.7 6.1
7 to 12 months past due 0.7 1.7
Over 1 year past due 1.6 0.7

79.5 106.0

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers (except for
sale proceeds receivable from disposal of properties held for sale) for whom there were no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of diversified independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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Apart from the trade debtors, none of the above financial assets is either past due or impaired as they relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s debtors, deposits and prepayments are amounts due from an associate and related
companies of HK$38.0 million (2008 - HK$28.1 million) and HK$3.1 million (2008 - HK$2.3 million), respectively,
which are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$53.0 million (2008 - HK$60.1 million) representing the trade creditors
of the Group. The aged analysis of such creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Outstanding balances with ages:
Within 3 months 52.4 58.7
Between 4 to 6 months 0.3 1.0
Over 1 year 0.3 0.4

53.0 60.1

The trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60-day terms.

Included in creditors and accruals are amounts due to associates and related companies of HK$6.1 million (2008 -
HK$8.9 million) and HK$4.5 million (2008 - HK$13.1 million), respectively, which have similar credit terms to those
offered by the associates and those related companies to their major customers.
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26. INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

GROUP

2009 2008
Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
p.a. (%) Maturity HK$’million p.a. (%) Maturity HK$’million

Current
Bank loans – secured 1.05-1.35 2010 69.4 – – –

Non-current
Bank loans – secured 0.90-2.25 2011 246.8 1.25-2.25 2010 268.5

316.2 268.5

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:

Within one year or on demand 69.4 –
In the second year 246.8 268.5

316.2 268.5

All interest bearing bank borrowings at 31st December, 2009 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a pledge of the Group’s certain assets as further detailed in note 34 to
the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current and non-current floating rate borrowings approximate to their fair
values.
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27. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

The outstanding preference shares at the beginning of the prior year represented 16,748 51/4% convertible
cumulative redeemable preference shares of US$10 each issued by the Company for cash on 13th December, 1993
at US$1,000 each. The preference shares were redeemable on 13th December, 2008 at US$1,000 each (the
“Reference Amount”). The Company had the right to redeem, on or at any time after 13th December, 1996, either
part or all of the preference shares, subject to certain conditions, at a redemption price of not less than the
Reference Amount, with such amount to be determined by reference to specified percentages applicable to the year
in which the redemption takes place. The redemption could be made either in United States dollars, or by issuing
such number of the Company’s ordinary shares calculated by reference to 95% of the average daily closing price of
the ordinary shares for the five dealing days ending on the seventh day prior to the date on which notice of such
redemption (the “Redemption Notice”) was first given to the preference shareholders, at the fixed exchange rate of
HK$7.730255 to US$1.00.

All preference shareholders had the right (the “Conversion Rights”) to convert any or all of their preference shares
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company at an initial price of HK$2.0445 per share based on the Reference
Amount of US$1,000 per preference share at the fixed exchange rate of HK$7.730255 to US$1.00. The conversion
price of the preference shares was adjusted to HK$1.7037 per share on 19th June, 1997 as a result of a bonus issue
of ordinary shares and further adjusted to HK$17.037 per share with effect from 23rd October, 2008 as a result of
the Share Consolidation. The Conversion Rights were exercisable on or after 28th December, 1993 until and
including the eighth day prior to 13th December, 2008 or, if earlier, the date fixed for redemption thereof as set
out in the Redemption Notice.

All outstanding 16,748 preference shares in issue were redeemed at the Reference Amount per share on 13th
December, 2008.

In prior years, the fair value of the liability component was determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. The residual amount was recognised as the derivative financial instrument classified as current
liabilities which was remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The dividend on the convertible
preference shares was charged as interest expense in the income statement.

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Liability component at 1st January – 128.6
Interest expense – 7.7
Dividend paid – (6.8)
Redemption for the year – (129.5)

Liability component at 31st December – –
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28. DEFERRED TAX

The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong amounting to HK$2,670.0 million (2008 - HK$2,272.3 million) at the
end of the reporting period. The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets amounting to HK$440.6
million (2008 - HK$374.9 million) have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31st December, 2009, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2008 - Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities as
the Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

COMPANY

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Shares

Authorised:
2,000.0 million (2008 - 2,000.0 million)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200.0 200.0
0.1 million 51/4% convertible cumulative redeemable

preference shares of US$10 each 1.3 1.3

201.3 201.3

Issued and fully paid:
1,010.7 million (2008 - 1,013.9 million)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 101.1 101.4

Share premium

Ordinary shares 879.2 885.1
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A summary of the movements of the Company’s share capital and share premium during the period from 1st
January, 2008 to 31st December, 2009 is as follows:

Authorised Issued and fully paid Share premium

Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount Amount

Notes ‘million HK$’million ‘million HK$’million HK$’million

Ordinary shares
At 1st January, 2008 20,000.0 200.0 10,493.0 104.9 1,023.4
Repurchase and cancellation of shares

before Share Consolidation (ii) – – (311.0) (3.1) (129.3)

20,000.0 200.0 10,182.0 101.8 894.1

Balance at 23rd October, 2008
after Share Consolidation (i) 2,000.0 200.0 1,018.2 101.8 894.1

Repurchase and cancellation of shares
after Share Consolidation (ii) – – (4.3)* (0.4) (9.0)

As 31st December, 2008 and
at 1st January, 2009 2,000.0 200.0 1,013.9 101.4 885.1

Repurchase and cancellation of shares (iii) – – (3.2) (0.3) (5.9)

As 31st December, 2009 2,000.0 200.0 1,010.7 101.1 879.2

51/4% convertible cumulative redeemable
preference shares of US$10 each
At 1st January, 2008, 31st December,

2008 and 2009 0.1 1.3 – – –

Total share capital
At 31st December, 2009 201.3 101.1 879.2

At 31st December, 2008 201.3 101.4 885.1

* inclusive of 0.7 million repurchased ordinary shares cancelled subsequent to the end of prior year’s reporting period.
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Notes:

(i) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 22nd October, 2008, the consolidation of ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company (on the
basis that every 10 then existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one ordinary
share of HK$0.10) was approved and subsequently became effective on 23rd October, 2008.

(ii) Except for 0.7 million repurchased ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each, which were cancelled subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, all ordinary shares repurchased during the year ended 31st December, 2008 were cancelled during that
year, and the issued share capital of the Company was accordingly reduced by the par value of the repurchased ordinary
shares so cancelled. The premium and related expenses paid on the repurchases of the ordinary shares, of HK$138.3
million, were charged to the share premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the ordinary shares
cancelled was transferred to the capital redemption reserve as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(iii) All ordinary shares repurchased during the year were cancelled during the year, and the issued share capital of the
Company was accordingly reduced by the par value of the repurchased ordinary shares so cancelled. The premium and
related expenses paid on the repurchases of the ordinary shares, of HK$5.9 million, were charged to the share premium
account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the ordinary shares cancelled was transferred to the capital redemption
reserve as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Details of the repurchases during the year are summarised as follows:

Number of
ordinary shares of Price per ordinary Aggregate

Month of HK$0.10 each share of HK$0.10 purchase
repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest price

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

January 2009 1,796,000 2.250 1.740 3,547,420
February 2009 1,376,000 2.000 1.750 2,570,420

3,172,000 6,117,840

Total expenses on shares repurchased
during the year (HK$) 20,598

Total (HK$) 6,138,438
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Share options

The Company operates a share option scheme named as “The Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited Share
Option Scheme“ (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company’s
shareholders on 16th June, 2005 and became effective on 21st July, 2005. Share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, movements in share options granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme are as
follows:

Number of ordinary shares
under share options*

Vesting/ Adjusted
Exercise exercise

At 1st Vested Lapsed At 31st periods price
Name or category January, during during December, of share of share

Offer date** of participant 2009 the year the year 2009 options options*
HK$

Directors

12th May, 2005 Mr. Lo Yuk Sui
Vested: 12,000,000 4,000,000 – 16,000,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 8,000,000*** (4,000,000) – 4,000,000

25th July, 2005 Ms. Belinda Yeung Bik Yiu
Vested: 1,800,000 600,000 – 2,400,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 1,200,000 (600,000) – 600,000

25th July, 2005 Mr. Donald Fan Tung
Vested: 1,200,000 400,000 – 1,600,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 800,000 (400,000) – 400,000

25th July, 2005 Mr. Jimmy Lo Chun To
Vested: 900,000 300,000 – 1,200,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 600,000 (300,000) – 300,000

25th July, 2005 Miss Lo Po Man
Vested: 1,800,000 600,000 – 2,400,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 1,200,000 (600,000) – 600,000

25th July, 2005 Mr. Kenneth Ng Kwai Kai
Vested: 1,200,000 400,000 – 1,600,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 800,000 (400,000) – 400,000

Other Employees

25th July, 2005 Employees, in aggregate
Vested: 2,100,000 700,000 (720,000) 2,080,000 Note 7.50
Unvested: 1,400,000 (700,000) (180,000) 520,000

Total:
Vested: 21,000,000 7,000,000 (720,000) 27,280,000
Unvested: 14,000,000 (7,000,000) (180,000) 6,820,000
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* Subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other relevant changes in the Company’s share capital.

** Offer date is the date on which the grant of share options is offered by the Company, and it is deemed the date of grant
of the share options unless the grant of share options is declined or lapsed.

*** In excess of the individual maximum limit of 1% of the ordinary shares in issue as of the offer date.

Note:

Vesting/Exercise periods of share options:

On completion of
continuous service of Percentage vesting Cumulative percentage exercisable

2 years after offer date 40% of options granted 40% (exercisable until
6 years after offer date)

3 years after offer date A further 20% of options granted 60% (exercisable until
6 years after offer date)

4 years after offer date A further 20% of options granted 80% (exercisable until
6 years after offer date)

5 years after offer date The final 20% of options granted 100% (exercisable until
6 years after offer date)

The summarised information on the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(i) Purpose: To provide the Company with a f lexible means of either
retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to eligible persons

(ii) Participants: Eligible person means any person who is either (i) an eligible
employee;  ( i i )  a  Non-Execut ive Di rector  ( inc luding any
Independent Non-Executive Directors); (iii) a direct or indirect
shareholder of any member of the Group; (iv) a person or entity
that provides advisory, consultancy, professional or other
serv ices to any member of  the Group; (v )  a  customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the
Group; (vi) any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants; or (vii) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any of the above
classes of participants, as notified by the Board that he is an
eligible person
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(iii) Total number of ordinary shares 34,100,000 ordinary shares (approximately 3.4%)
subject to outstanding options
under the Share Option
Scheme and as a percentage of
the issued share capital as at
31st December, 2009 and at
the date of this report:

(iv) Maximum entitlement of each Not exceeding 1% of the offer ordinary shares of the Company
participant under the Share in issue as of the offer date in any 12 month period
Option Scheme:

(v) The period within which the shares From the time when the options become vested to no later than
must be taken up under an option: ten years after the offer date

(vi) Minimum period for which an No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the Board at
option must be held before it can the time of the approval of the grant
be exercised:

(vii) Amount payable on application N/A
or acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments
or calls must or may be made or
loans for such purposes must be
repaid:

(viii) The basis of determining the Determined by the Board (subject to any necessary consent or
exercise price: approval being obtained) and shall not be less than the higher

of (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average closing price
of the ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii)
the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company

(ix) The life of the Share The life of the Share Option Scheme commenced from 16th
Option Scheme: June, 2005, date of adoption, and ending on 15th June, 2015.
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30. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements on page 62.

(b) Company

Share Capital Share
premium redemption option Retained

Notes account reserve reserve profits Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

At 1st January, 2008 1,023.4 2.7 32.3 4,013.3 5,071.7
Final 2007 dividend declared – – – 0.5 0.5
Repurchase and cancellation

of ordinary shares before
Share Consolidation 29(ii) (129.3) 3.1 – (3.1) (129.3)

Repurchase and cancellation of
ordinary shares after
Share Consolidation 29(ii) (9.0) 0.4 – (0.4) (9.0)

Equity-settled share option
arrangements – – 8.4 – 8.4

Loss for the year – – – (878.2) (878.2)
Interim 2008 dividend 13 – – – (30.6) (30.6)
Proposed final 2008 dividend 13 – – – (50.5) (50.5)

At 31st December, 2008 and
at 1st January, 2009 885.1 6.2 40.7 3,051.0 3,983.0

Final 2008 dividend declared – – – (0.1) (0.1)
Repurchase and cancellation of

ordinary shares 29(iii) (5.9) 0.3 – (0.3) (5.9)
Equity-settled share option

arrangements – – 3.8 – 3.8
Forfeiture of equity-settled

share option arrangements – – (0.1) 0.1 –
Profit for the year – – – 414.1 414.1
Interim 2009 dividend 13 – – – (20.2) (20.2)
Proposed final 2009 dividend 13 – – – (68.7) (68.7)

At 31st December, 2009 879.2 6.5 44.4 3,375.9 4,306.0
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31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Unlisted shares, at cost 5,552.2 5,552.2
Amount due from a subsidiary 1,808.8 1,886.8

7,361.0 7,439.0
Provision for impairment (2,882.2) (3,299.6)

4,478.8 4,139.4

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued Percentage of

Place of share capital/ equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to Principal

Name registration capital the Company  activities
2009 2008

8D Travel Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 100 Travel agency

8D Travel (Shanghai) Ltd* People’s US$375,000 100 100 Travel agency
Republic
of China

Best Time Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Lessee of offices

Camomile Investments Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Limited investment

Come On Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Securities trading
Company Limited and investment

Complete Success British Virgin US$1 100 100 Investment
Investments Limited Islands holding

Cranfield Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Financing

Favour Link International Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Hotel
Limited operations
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Nominal value
of issued Percentage of

Place of share capital/ equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to Principal

Name registration capital the Company  activities
2009 2008

Favourite Stock Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Islands investment

Fortune Nice Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Financing
Investment Limited

Fountain Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Securities
investment

Gaud Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Securities
trading and
investment

Great Prestige British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Investments Limited Islands investment

Harvest Charm Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Financing
Investment Limited

Honormate Nominees Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Securities
Limited investment

and nominee
services

Honrich Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Financing
Limited

Kaybro Investments British Virgin US$1 100 100 Investment
Limited Islands holding

Regal Contracting Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Contracting
Agency Limited agency

Regal Estate Agents Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Estate agency

Regal Estate Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Estate
Limited management

Regal Hotels (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$1,151,598,638 100 100 Investment
Limited holding
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Nominal value
of issued Percentage of

Place of share capital/ equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to Principal

Name registration capital the Company  activities
2009 2008

Regal Hotels International Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 Hotel
Limited management

Regal Hotels Management British Virgin US$1 100 100 Hotel
(BVI) Limited Islands management

Regal International Limited British Virgin US$20 100 100 Investment
Islands  and trademark

holding

Regal International (BVI) British Virgin HK$10.1 100 100 Investment
Holdings Limited Islands holding

Regal Portfolio Hong Kong HK$8,811,937 100 100 Asset
Management Limited management

R.H.I. Licensing B.V. The Netherlands NLG40,000 100 100 Trademark
holding

Tenshine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Securities
investment

and financing

Time Crest Investments British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Limited Islands investment

Unicorn Star Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Islands investment

Valuegood International British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Limited Islands investment

Well Mount Investments British Virgin US$1 100 100 Securities
Limited Islands investment

廣州市富堡訂房服務 People’s RMB100,000 100 100 Room
　有限公司* Republic of reservation

China services

富豪酒店投資管理（上海）
　有限公司 (formerly麗歌酒店 People’s US$140,000 100 100 Hotel
　管理（上海）有限公司)* Republic of management

China

* These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.
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Except for Regal International (BVI) Holdings Limited, all principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

All of the above subsidiaries operate in the place of their incorporation/registration, except for Regal Hotels
Management (BVI) Limited, which operates in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Company has reversed an impairment loss of HK$417.4 million (2008
– impairment loss of HK$865.1 million) to reflect the increase in the net asset value of its subsidiaries during the
year.
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32. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows used in operating activities

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Profit/(loss) before tax 443.8 (808.2)
Adjustments for:

Finance costs 4.9 9.9
Share of profits and losses of jointly

controlled entities and associates (341.9) 462.8
Interest income (8.4) (41.2)
Depreciation 6.4 4.0
Dividend income from listed investments (2.1) (2.1)
Gain on disposal of investment properties (33.1) –
Fair value gains/(loss) on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, net (267.1) 133.7
Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument – (0.1)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investment 0.8 –
Equity-settled share option expenses 3.8 8.4
Income from asset management service (70.8) (66.7)
Fair value gain upon reclassification of properties

held for sale to investment properties net of
fair value loss upon revaluation (141.2) (36.8)

Impairment of trade debtors, net 0.9 –
Write off of fixed assets – 0.1

(404.0) (336.2)
Decrease/(increase) in hotel inventories 1.5 (5.7)
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for sale 108.1 (7.0)
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments 7.4 321.0
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (6.8) 134.9
Decrease in creditors and accruals (104.5) (217.1)

Cash used in operations (398.3) (110.1)
Overseas taxes paid (0.3) (0.8)
Hong Kong tax paid (3.1) –

Net cash flows used in operating activities (401.7) (110.9)

(b) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, REIT manager’s fee in the amount of HK$56.7 million (2008 - HK$67.7 million) were received
by the Group in units issued by Regal REIT.
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33. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, the
Group had the following material connected and related party transactions during the year:

2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

A substantial shareholder:
Management fees expenses (i) 16.4 14.8

Wholly owned subsidiaries of
a substantial shareholder,
Paliburg Holdings Limited (“PHL”):

Development consultancy fees expenses (ii) 3.8 5.3
Service fees expenses in respect of security

systems and products and other software (iii) 1.9 5.4
Repairs and maintenance fees and

construction fees expenses (iv) 31.4 68.8

Associates:
REIT manager’s fees (v) 70.8 66.7
Lease rental expenses (vi) 757.8 701.9
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

reserve contribution expenses (vii) 24.1 29.0
Other rental expenses (viii) 7.4 9.8
Advertising and promotion fees expenses

(including cost reimbursements) (ix) 7.3 9.3

Jointly controlled entities:
Interest income (x) – 1.3
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Notes:

(i) The management costs included rentals and other overheads allocated from Century City International Holdings
Limited (“CCIHL”), an indirect substantial shareholder of the Company, either on the basis of specific attribution or
by reference to a predetermined ratio assessed by the management of CCIHL, PHL and the Company based on the
distribution of job responsibilities and the estimated time to be spent by the relevant staff in serving each of the
three groups.

(ii) The development consultancy fees were paid to a subsidiary of PHL for various services provided, which include
advisory, supervisory, architectural and design services in connection with the room extension and other renovation
projects of the hotels operated by the Group. The fees were charged at agreed rates of the estimated cost of
individual projects.

(iii) Fees were paid to certain wholly owned subsidiaries of PHL for the purchases and maintenance services of the
security systems and products and other software installed in the Group’s hotel properties. The fees were charged
based on cost plus a margin depending on the nature and location of the work provided.

(iv) Fees were paid to a wholly owned subsidiary of PHL for providing repairs and maintenance and construction works
for the hotel properties. The fees were negotiated based on cost plus a margin and/or awarded through competitive
tendering process.

(v) The REIT manager’s fees comprise a base fee and a variable fee payable by Regal REIT to Regal Portfolio
Management Limited for its services as the REIT manager under the terms of the Trust Deed.

(vi) The lease rental represents the cash base rent payable by the Group to Regal REIT under the relevant lease
agreements (the “Lease Agreements”) in connection with the leasing of the hotel properties from Regal REIT for
hotel operations.

(vii) The furniture, fixtures and equipment reserve contribution is payable by the Group to Regal REIT under the Lease
Agreements for the purchases and replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment of the hotel properties.

(viii) The other rental expenses represent the lease rental for certain supporting premises paid to Regal REIT in connection
with the hotel operations.

(ix) The advertising and promotion fees paid to an associate comprised a retainer determined by reference to the
estimated volume of advertising and promotional activities of the Group and a standard fee based on total costs
involved, in addition to which actual costs and out-of-pocket expenses incurred were reimbursed.

(x) The interest income was earned from advance to a jointly controlled entity at agreed rate.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above transactions were entered into in the normal
and usual course of business.

In addition, the Group has guaranteed a total minimum variable rent payable under the Lease Agreements for
the period from 30th March, 2007 to 31st December, 2010 in the amount of HK$220.0 million, of which
HK$101.6 million has been paid by the Group up to 31st December, 2009.
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The Company has also guaranteed the lessee’s obligations under the Lease Agreements under separate
guarantees (the “Lease Guarantees”). In this connection, the Company has undertaken to maintain a
minimum consolidated tangible net worth (as defined in the Lease Guarantees) of HK$4 billion and procure an
unconditional and irrevocable bank guarantee in the amount of HK$1 billion in favour of the lessors and the
trustee of Regal REIT.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement signed in connection with the spin-off for separate listing of
Regal REIT completed on 30th March, 2007 (the “Spin-off’), the Group has undertaken to complete and bear
the cost of the asset enhancement program (the “AEP”) for certain hotel properties disposed of to Regal REIT.
The total estimated cost of the AEP, including the land premium payable, amounted to approximately
HK$534.7 million of which the outstanding balance as at 31st December, 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$24.2 million (2008 - HK$103.2 million) and has been fully provided for in the financial statements.

Under a deed of trade mark licence, the Group has granted to Regal REIT a non-exclusive and non-
transferable licence at nil consideration to use its registered trade marks or service marks for the purpose of
describing the ownership of the hotels disposed of by the Group to Regal REIT and/or use in connection with
the business of these hotels.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

2009 2008
Notes HK$’million HK$’million

Due from a jointly controlled entity (i) 366.7 366.7
Due from an associate (ii) 38.0 28.1
Due from related companies (ii) 3.1 2.3
Due to an associate (iii) (6.1) (8.9)
Due to related companies (iii) (4.5) (13.1)
Loans to jointly controlled entities (i) 1,091.4 1,116.6
Loans to/amounts due from associates (iv) 326.3 275.1

Notes:

(i) Details of an amount due from and loans to jointly controlled entities are included in interest in jointly controlled
entities in note 17 to the financial statements.

(ii) Details of an amount due from an associate and the amounts due from related companies are included in debtors,
deposits and prepayments in note 24 to the financial statements.

(iii) Details of the amount due to an associate and related companies are included in creditors and accruals in note 25 to
the financial statements.

(iv) Details of loans to/amounts due from associates are included in interests in associates in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Short term employee benefits 19.4 20.7
Equity-settled share-based payments 3.5 7.2

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel 22.9 27.9

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in notes 33(a)(i) to (iv) and (ix) above also constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules to the Company. Certain of the
transactions set out in notes 33(a)(i) to (iv) and (ix) are exempted from relevant disclosures and other requirements,
including, inter alia, independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to, where applicable, rules 14A.31(8), 14A.33(2),
14A.31(2)(a) and 14A.33(3)(a) of the Listing Rules. Certain of the transactions set out in notes 33(a)(ii) and (iv) are
subject only to the reporting and announcement requirements and exempted from the requirement of obtaining the
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to Rule 14A.32(1) of the Listing Rules. Relevant reporting and
announcement requirements as set out in rules 14A.45 and 14A.47 of the Listing Rules with respect to such
transactions have been complied with.

Relevant disclosures and other requirements, including, inter alia, independent shareholders’ approval (where
required) in accordance with the Listing Rules with respect to the connected transactions during the prior year set
out in note 33(a) had been made or met or otherwise exempted.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2009, part of the Group’s bank deposits in the amount of HK$1,000.0 million (2008 -
HK$1,000.0 million) were pledged to secure a bank guarantee procured by the Group pursuant to the lease
guarantees (note 33(a)), and certain of the Group’s investment properties, properties held for sale, bank deposits
and cash balances in the total amount of HK$1,055.1 million (2008 - HK$512.5 million) were also pledged to
secure other banking facilities granted to the Group.
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Apart from the guarantees given under the Lease Agreements in respect of the minimum variable rent as disclosed
in note 33(a), the Group had no other contingent liability as at 31st December, 2009 (2008 - Nil).

As at 31st December, 2009, corporate guarantees amounted to HK$776.0 million (2008 - HK$680.0 million) were
given by the Company in connection with banking facilities granted to a subsidiary. The banking facilities granted
to the subsidiary was utilised to the extent of approximately HK$318.5 million (2008 - HK$270.0 million) at 31st
December, 2009.

The Group has a contingent liability in respect of possible future long service payments to employees under the
Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible amount of HK$1.3 million as at 31st December, 2009 (2008 -
HK$12.8 million), as further explained in note 2.4(v) to the financial statements. The contingent liability has arisen
because, at the end of the reporting period, a number of current employees have achieved the required number of
years of service to the Group, and are eligible for long service payments under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated under certain circumstances. A provision has not been recognised in respect of such
possible payments, as it is not considered probable that the situation will result in a material future outflow of
resources from the Group.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

Since the completion of the Spin-off of Regal REIT, the Group has effectively subleased certain retail space
and areas of its leased hotel properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 3 years. The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and, in certain cases, provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the terms under the leases.

The Group also leases certain of its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms of 2 years. The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and, in certain cases, provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the terms under the leases.

At 31st December, 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Within one year 30.8 40.0
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 16.2 15.5

47.0 55.5
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(b) As lessee

Since the completion of the Spin-off, the Group has leased certain hotel properties from Regal REIT under the
Lease Agreements, the term of which runs from 30th March, 2007 to 31st December, 2015. The rental
package for the years up to 2010 comprises a cash base rent which is a pre-determined escalating annual
amount payable monthly and a variable rent calculated as a percentage of the net property income of the
hotel properties in excess of the cash base rent on an annual basis, as stipulated in the Lease Agreements. For
the years from 2011 to 2015, the rental package is to be determined subject to annual rent reviews by an
independent property valuer.

The Group also leases certain office and shop units and office equipment under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms from 1 to 3 years. Lease for office equipment in respect of the
Group is negotiated for a term of 5 years.

At 31st December, 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

GROUP

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Land and buildings:
Within one year 789.4 763.0
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 0.6 786.2

790.0 1,549.2

Other equipment:
Within one year 0.2 0.1
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 0.6 0.2

0.8 0.3

790.8 1,549.5

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no outstanding operating lease commitments.

The lease payments set out above exclude the lease rental payable by the Group under the Lease Agreements
for the years from 2011 to 2015, which is to be determined subject to annual rent reviews by an independent
property valuer and a minimum annual aggregate lease rental of HK$400.0 million.

In addition, the Group has guaranteed a total minimum variable rent payable under the Lease Agreements for
the period from 30th March, 2007 to 31st December, 2010 in the amount of HK$220.0 million, of which
HK$101.6 million has been paid by the Group up to 31st December, 2009.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2009 GROUP

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

- designated
as such

upon initial - held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Other loan (note 21) – – 13.3 13.3
Trade debtors (note 24) – – 79.6 79.6
Other financial assets included in

debtors, deposits and prepayments – – 163.8 163.8
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (note 19) 691.3 212.8 – 904.1
Pledged bank deposits – – 1,003.6 1,003.6
Time deposits – – 251.2 251.2
Cash and bank balances – – 358.5 358.5

691.3 212.8 1,870.0 2,774.1

Finanical liabilities

Financial
liabilities at

amortised
cost

HK$’million

Trade creditors (note 25) 53.0
Other financial liabilities included in creditors and accruals 226.4
Interest bearing bank borrowings (note 26) 316.2

595.6



P.131A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9

Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’d)

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2008 GROUP

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

- designated
as such Available-

upon initial - held for for-sale Loans and
recognition trading investment receivables Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Other loan (note 21) – – – 36.1 36.1
Trade debtors (note 24) – – – 106.9 106.9
Other financial assets included in debtors,

deposits and prepayments – – – 89.7 89.7
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (note 19) 423.0 108.1 – – 531.1
Available-for-sale investment – – 3.1 – 3.1
Pledged bank deposits – – – 1,008.3 1,008.3
Time deposits – – – 153.3 153.3
Cash and bank balances – – – 307.2 307.2

423.0 108.1 3.1 1,701.5 2,235.7

Finanical liabilities

Financial
liabilities at

amortised
cost

HK$’million

Trade creditors (note 25) 60.1
Other financial liabilities included in creditors and accruals 111.4
Interest bearing bank borrowings (note 26) 268.5

440.0
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COMPANY

Financial assets 2009 2008
Loans and Loans and

receivables receivables
HK$’million HK$’million

Amount due from a subsidiary (note 31) 1,808.8 1,886.8
Cash and bank balances 0.5 0.5

1,809.3 1,887.3

Financial liabilities 2009 2008
Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost

HK$’million HK$’million

Other payables 2.0 2.7
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38. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31st December, 2009:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss 245.0 – – 245.0

Unlisted investment at fair value
through profit or loss – 4.5 – 4.5

Unlisted debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss – 654.6 – 654.6

245.0 659.1 – 904.1

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, other interest bearing loans and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The Directors meet periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to these risks. Generally, the Group adopts prudent strategies on its risk management. As the Group’s
exposure to these risks is endeavoured to be kept to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risks relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with a floating interest rate.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available for its borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

Group

Change
Change in profit Change

in basis points before tax in equity*
HK$’million HK$’million

2009
Hong Kong dollar 100 (3.2) –

2008
Hong Kong dollar 100 (2.7) –

* Excluding retained profits
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Credit risk

The Group’s major exposure to the credit risk arising from the default of the trade debtors, with a maximum
exposure equal to their carrying amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group only grants
credits after due credit risk assessments. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors and industries (except for sale proceeds receivable from disposal
of properties).

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are disclosed in
note 24 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank facilities. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. The Group will raise funds from either the financial market or realisation of its assets if
required.

The maturity profile of the Group’s other financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group

2009
Within

1 year or 1 to 2
on demand  years Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Interest bearing bank borrowings 70.0 248.5 318.5
Trade creditors 53.0 – 53.0
Other payables 224.5 10.3 234.8

347.5 258.8 606.3
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Group

2008
Within

1 year or 1 to 2
on demand  years Total
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Interest bearing bank borrowings – 270.0 270.0
Trade creditors 60.1 – 60.1
Other payables 118.3 4.7 123.0

178.4 274.7 453.1

Company

2009 2008

On demand On demand
HK$’million HK$’million

Guarantees given to banks in connection
with facilities granted to subsidiaries 318.5 270.0

Other payables 2.0 2.7

320.5 272.7

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments and unlisted debt investment in convertible bonds classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 19) and available-for-sale investment (note 20) as at 31st December, 2009. The Group’s
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The Group's unlisted debt investment in convertible bonds are stated at fair value provided by an
independent professional valuer using valuation techniques based on the quoted market price of the underlying
listed securities at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5% change in the fair values of the equity investments and the
underlying listed securities of the convertible bonds, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on
tax, based on the carrying amounts of the relevant financial assets at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale investments, the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as impairment which might impact on the
income statement.
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Carrying amount Change
of equity in profit Change

investments before tax in equity*
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

2009
Investments listed in Hong Kong 240.1 12.0 –
Investments listed outside Hong Kong 4.9 0.2 –
Unlisted investment at fair value

Convertible bonds 653.5 29.7 –

2008
Investments listed in Hong Kong 131.5 6.6 –

Unlisted investment at fair value
Convertible bonds 394.9 11.8 –
Available-for-sale investment 3.1 – 0.1

* Excluding retained earnings

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements except for the obligation under the lease guarantees as
detailed in note 33 to maintain a minimum consolidated tangible net worth. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st December, 2009 and 31st
December, 2008.
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The Group monitors capital using a debt to total assets ratio, which is net debt divided by the total assets. Net debt
includes interest bearing bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.  The debt to total assets ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Group

2009 2008
HK$’million HK$’million

Interest bearing bank borrowings 316.2 268.5
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,613.3) (1,468.8)

Net cash (1,297.1) (1,200.3)

Total assets 5,213.9 4,835.4

Debt to total assets ratio N/A N/A

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd March, 2010.



P.139A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9

Independent Auditors’ Report

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

To the shareholders of Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited set out on pages 58 to 138,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31st December, 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31st December, 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor
Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong
22nd March, 2010



P.141A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 9

Schedule of Principal Properties

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31st December, 2009

PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT AND/OR SALE

Percentage
interest

Stage of attributable
Approx. completion to the

Description Use Area (completion date) Company

(1) Certain luxury Residential Site area Completed in 100
residential houses at for the whole March 2004
Regalia Bay, development -
88 Wong Ma Kok Road, 571,848 sq. ft.
Stanley, Hong Kong Gross floor area

of 13 allocated
houses held -
approx.
64,810 sq. ft.

(2) Development site at Hotel and Site area for Development works 50
south of Xindu Main commercial the whole for first stage 
Road and both sides of complex/ development - commenced
Xingle Road, residential 1,204,148 sq. ft.
Banqiao Village,
Xindu County, First stage
Xindu District, •  a 300-room hotel
Chengdu, •  residential
Sichuan Province, PRC development with

total gross floor
area of approx.
1,500,000 sq. ft.

Stage two
•  residential

development with
total gross floor
area of approx.
1,900,000 sq. ft.

Stage three
•  commercial and office

accomodations with
total gross floor
area of approx.
1,500,000 sq. ft.
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As at 31st December, 2009

Percentage
interest

Stage of attributable
Approx. completion to the

Description Use Area (completion date) Company

(3) Development site at Commercial/ Construction •  Development works 29.5
Chao Yang office/hotel site area for the temporarily
Men Wai Da Jie, complex whole development - suspended
Chao Yang District, 610,240 sq. ft.
Beijing, •  Land Use Right
PRC Certificates for

the Phase I land
site obtained

PROPERTIES FOR INVESTMENT

Percentage
interest

attributable
to the

Description Use Lease Company

12 luxury residential Residential Medium term 100
houses at Regalia Bay,
88 Wong Ma Kok Road,
Stanley, Hong Kong
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Published Five Year Financial Summary

REGAL HOTELS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS

Year ended 31st December,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Revenue 1,381.2 1,511.8 1,722.9 1,261.2 1,141.1

Operating profit/(loss) before depreciation 113.2 (331.5) 2,504.7 553.5 545.8
Depreciation (6.4) (4.0) (9.6) (139.0) (131.5)
Finance costs (4.9) (9.9) (84.2) (265.8) (199.8)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly controlled entities (2.3) (4.9) 41.6 203.6 128.5
Associates 344.2 (457.9) 527.0 2.9 83.8

Profit/(loss) before tax 443.8 (808.2) 2,979.5 355.2 426.8
Income tax (12.7) (0.6) (22.2) (23.9) 101.7

Profit/(loss) for the year 431.1 (808.8) 2,957.3 331.3 528.5

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 431.1 (808.8) 2,957.3 331.3 528.4
Minority interests – – – – 0.1

431.1 (808.8) 2,957.3 331.3 528.5
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

31st December,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

Property, plant and equipment 38.2 16.8 11.1 10.6 2,920.2
Investment properties 805.0 855.0 – – –
Prepaid land lease payments – – – – 1,088.0
Interests in jointly controlled entities 176.6 203.8 112.1 2,032.6 1,804.7
Interests in associates 584.9 517.4 1,277.3 488.8 260.7
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss/long term investments 358.0 423.0 380.7 – 140.8
Available-for-sale investment – 3.1 – – –
Other loan 13.3 36.1 36.1 65.6 62.1
Deferred tax assets – – – 2.4 98.1
Pledged bank deposits 1,000.0 1,000.0 970.0 – –
Deposit for acquisition of land – – 134.4 – –
Current assets 2,237.9 1,780.2 3,160.6 4,478.4 543.4

Total assets 5,213.9 4,835.4 6,082.3 7,078.4 6,918.0

Current liabilities (490.0) (430.7) (800.6) (2,102.7) (2,044.7)
Interest bearing bank and

other borrowings (246.8) (268.5) – (2,628.8) (2,766.9)
Convertible bonds – – – – (188.4)
Convertible preference shares – – – (127.7) (126.9)
Deferred tax liabilities – – – – (21.9)

Total liabilities (736.8) (699.2) (800.6) (4,859.2) (5,148.8)

Minority interests 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3
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